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(CIN: L27109DL1958PLC003006)
426, DLF Tower- A,
Jasola, New Delhi - 110025.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 62nd  Annual General Meeting of the Members of Hindustan Tin Works
Limited will be  held on Monday, 28th September, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other
Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following businesses.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 and the Statement
of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the report of the Board of Directors and
Auditors' thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Prit Pal Singh (DIN: 00658785) who retires by rotation as per the
provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. TO RATIFY THE REMUNERATION OF THE COST AUDITORS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING MARCH 31,
2021.

To consider and if, thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:-

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Messrs K. S. Bhatnagar & Associates,
Cost Auditors (Firm Registration No. 102274) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2021 to
be paid the remuneration as set out in the statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting be
and is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all
acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

By Order of the Board

Place : New Delhi Rajat Pathak
Date : 13th August, 2020 VP (Finance) & Company Secretary

Registered Office :
426, DLF Tower- A,
Jasola, New Delhi - 110025.

NOTES :-

1. In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') vide its circular
dated 5 May 2020 read with circulars dated 8 April 2020 and 13 April 2020 (collectively referred to as
'MCA Circulars') and SEBI circular dated 12 May 2020 permitted holding of the AGM through VC/OAVM
facility, without the physical presence of the members at a common venue. In compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as 'SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015') and MCA Circulars, the AGM
of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM (hereinafter called as 'e-AGM').

2.  The deemed venue for 62nd  e-AGM shall be the registered office of the Company.
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3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the
Company. Since this e-AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM facility,
physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of
proxies by the members will not be available for the e-AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance
Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

1. The register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday,
23rd September, 2020 to Monday, 28th September, 2020 (both days inclusive).

2. The dividend, if declared at the meeting, will be paid on or after 28th September, 2020 to those
members whose names appear:

a. As Beneficial Owners as at the end of the business hours on 22nd September, 2020 as per the list
to be furnished by the depositary in respect of the shares held in electronic form and,

b. As members in the Register of Members of the Company after giving effect to all valid share
transfers in physical form lodged with the Company on or before 22nd September, 2020.

3. The members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address, exclusively on separate
letter without clubbing it with any other request, for quicker attention directly to the Company's Share
Transfer Agent.

Messrs Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd.
Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir,
Behind Local Shopping Complex,
New Delhi - 110062.

4. A statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special Business to be
transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

5. Brief profile of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment, as amended under SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, forms part of the Notice. None of the
Independent Directors of the Company are in any way related to each other.

6. The facility of joining the e-AGM through VC /OAVM will be opened 30 minutes before and will be open
up to 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the e-AGM, i.e. from 10.30 a.m. to 11.15 a.m. and
will be available for 1,000 members on a first-come first-served basis. This rule would however not apply
to participation of members holding 2% or more shareholding, promoters, directors, key and senior
managerial personnel, auditors, etc.

7. The Shareholders are requested to update their Contact address and e mail address.

8. Shareholders are requested to get their shares converted from physical form to DEMAT form.

9. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial years 2011-
12, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. The
Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividend amounts lying with the Company
as on 28th September, 2019 (date of the previous Annual General Meeting) on the website of the
Company which can be accessed through the link:http://hindustantin.biz/Uploads/image/
72imguf_IEPFTransfer.pdf. The said details have also been uploaded on the website of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and the same can be accessed through the link: www.mca.gov.in.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with IEPF Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 which came into force from September 7, 2016
(including any amendment thereto or reenactment thereof for the time being in force), all equity shares
in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the Member(s) for seven consecutive
years or more are required to be transferred to the IEPF Authority, a Fund constituted by the Government
of India under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has communicated individually
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earlier and also published notice in newspapers on 3rd July 2020 to the concerned Members to claim
their unpaid / unclaimed dividend amount(s) and that failure to claim the same would lead to their
equity shares being transferred to the IEPF Authority without any further notice. In accordance with the
aforesaid IEPF Rules, during the Financial Year 2018-19 & till date, the Company has transferred shares
pertaining to dividends which remained unpaid and unclaimed, being declared for the years 2008-09,
2009-10, 2010-11 and 2011-12, to the IEPF Authority

The unclaimed dividends and corresponding shares including all benefits accruing on such shares, if any,
once transferred to the IEPF Authority can only be claimed back from the IEPF Authority, for which details
are available at www.iepf.gov.in.

Claim of Unclaimed Dividend, if any, for the financial years 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-16,
2016-17, 2017-18 & 2018-19 shall be made to the Company or Share Transfer Agent.

10. In terms of Regulation 40(7) read with Schedule VII of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, it is mandatory for the transferor and the transferee(s) of the Physical shares to furnish
copy of their PAN card for registration of transfer of shares. Transferor and the Transferee(s) are requested
to furnish copies of their PAN card along with share transfer deed duly completed and physical share
certificate(s). For securities market transactions and/or for off-market or private transactions involving
transfer of shares, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall furnish copy of PAN card to the Company
/ Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd.

11. SEBI vide its notification dated 08/06/2018 has mandated that, except in case of transmission or
transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the
securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. Members holding shares in physical form
are therefore requested to dematerialize their share certificates.

12. In terms of section 101 and 136 of the Act, read together with the Rules made thereunder, the listed
companies may send the notice of e-AGM and the annual report, including Financial statements, Board
Report, etc. by electronic mode. Pursuant to the said provisions of the Act read with MCA Circulars, SEBI
circular dated 12 May 2020, Notice of 62nd e-AGM along with the Annual Report for FY2019-20 is being
sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depositories. Members may note that the said Notice and Annual Report will also be available
on the Company's website-www.hindustantin.biz website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Ltd.
www.bseindia.com

13. Members desirous of asking any question at the Annual General Meeting are requested to send their
question so as to reach the Company between 21st September, 2020 to 23rd September 2020 on or
before 5.00 pm on the email id investorrelations@hindustantin.co.in so that the same can be suitably
addressed.

14. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names
will be entitled to vote.

15. Appointment of Directors: At the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Mr. Prit Pal Singh retires by rotation
and seek reappointment.

16. The relevant Registers & other documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and in the Explanatory
Statements are open for inspection by the members at the Company's Registered Office on all working
days during business hours up to the date of the meeting.

17. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020,
April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in
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respect of the business to be transacted at the AGMFor this purpose, the Company has entered into an
agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic
means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-
voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

18. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to
exercise their right to vote at 62nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may
be transacted through e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

(i) The voting period begins on Friday, 25th September, 2020 (9 a.m.) and ends on Sunday, 27th September
2020 (5 p.m.). During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 22nd September, 2020 may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote on the
date of AGM.

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

(iv) Click on "Shareholders" module.

(v) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

OR

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at
https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in
to CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote
electronically.

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account
Bank Details or in the company records in order to login.
or Date of • If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id /
Birth (DOB) folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.
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(x) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this
password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

(xi) For members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN of HINDUSTAN TIN WORKS LIMITED on which you choose to vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option "YES/NO"
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL"
and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting page.

(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app "m-Voting". The m-Voting app can be
downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while
Remote Voting on your mobile.

(xx) PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE
DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN
THIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
investorrelations@hindustantin.co.in/ investor@beetalfinancial.com.

2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account detials (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or
NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
investorrelations@hindustantin.co.in/ investor@beetalfinancial.com.

(xxi) INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the
CDSL e-Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under
shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be
available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.
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3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network.
It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

(xxii) INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for
Remote e-voting.

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM.

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if
the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the
votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the
meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the  AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

(xxiii) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to
log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the "Corporates" module.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on
admin user also would be able to link the account(s).

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

(xxiv) Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary (M No. 2148) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer
to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

(xxv) The Chairman/Company Secretary shall formally propose to the members participating through VC/
OAVM facility to vote on the resolutions as set out in the notice of the 62nd e- AGM and announce the
start of the casting of vote through the e- voting system of beetal.

(xxvi) The scruitiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the e-AGM, first count the votes cast
at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes through e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses,
not in the employment of the company and make a scruitiniser's report of the total votes cast in favour
or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company, who shall countersign the same.
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(xxvii) The Scruitiniser shall submit his report to the Chairman, who shall declare the results of the voting. The
results declared along with the scruitiniser's report shall be placed on the Company's website and also
be communicated to the Stock Exchange. The resolutions shall be deemed to be passed at the e-AGM
of the Company.

(xxviii) Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized
to vote, to the Company at the email address investorrelations@hindustantin.co.in, if they have voted
from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you may
refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com,
under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder
(022- 23058738) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542).

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43.

By Order of the Board

Place : New Delhi Rajat Pathak
Date : 13th August, 2020 VP (Finance) & Company Secretary

Registered Office :
426, DLF Tower- A,
Jasola, New Delhi - 110025.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 04

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration
of the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending
March 31, 2021 as per the following details:

Sr. No. Name of Cost Auditor Industry Audit Fees

1. Messrs K.S Bhatnagar & Associates Steel Rs. 2,50,000/-

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the
Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 04 of
the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st
March, 2021.
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Hence, your Directors recommend the above resolution for approval of the Shareholders as an Ordinary
Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or
interested in the proposed resolution.

By Order of the Board

Place : New Delhi Rajat Pathak
Date : 13th August, 2020 VP (Finance) & Company Secretary

Registered Office :
426, DLF Tower- A,

Jasola, New Delhi - 110025.

Details of the Director Seeking Re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting :

Name of The Director Mr. Prit Pal Singh

Date of Birth 10th May, 1962

Date of first Appointment 12th August, 2011

Qualification & B. Sc. LL.B & Post Graduate Diploma in Human Resources
Management

Expertise Human Resources Management

Directorship held in other Companies NIL
(excluding foreign private and Section 8
of Companies Act)

Chairman/Member of the Committees Others:
Ministry of Labour and Employment- Member of
Minimum Wage Board  (As Employers' representative)

Shareholding of Directors NIL

Relationship bteween Directors inter-se NIL
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the 62nd Annual Report together with the Audited Annual
Accounts of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 is summarized below:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

2019-2020 2018-2019

Profit before Interest, Depreciation, & Tax                      2551.62 3114.69
Less:

Financial Costs 959.35 1082.26
Depreciation  and Amortization expense 857.05 763.39
Provision for Tax 210.22 447.64
Deferred Tax (236.24) 31.95

Profit for the year 761.24 789.45
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) (10.11)    3.53

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 751.14  792.98

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Hindustan Tin Works Ltd. is one of the leading manufacturer and exporter of high performance cans, printed
sheets, and related components to consumer marketing companies in India and abroad. It is one of the leading
and established Company in Metal Packaging Industry.

We are keenly conscious of the emerging opportunities in the can-manufacturing sector in India as well as
abroad. During the year under review, there was no change in nature of the business of the Company.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend @ Rs. 0.60 per Equity Share (6%) on the paid up capital
of the Company for the year 2019-20, which if approved at the forthcoming AGM, will be paid to all those Equity
Shareholders whose names appear (i) As Beneficial Owners as at the end of the business hours on 22nd
September, 2020 as per the list to be furnished by the depository in respect of the shares held in electronic form
and, (ii) As member in the Register of Members of the Company after giving effect to all valid shares transfers
in physical form lodged with the Company on or before 22nd September, 2020.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

It is not proposed to transfer any amount to reserves out of the profits earned during financial year 2019-20.

OPERATIONS

Your Company could achieve revenue from operations (net of GST) of Rs.29768.16 lakhs as against the previous
year's revenue from operations (net of GST) of Rs. 33635.77 lakhs i.e. Decrease of Rs. 3867.61 lakhs (11.50%).
The export sale of the Company has been decreased from Rs. 6775.52 lakhs in previous year to Rs. 4483.38
lakhs in current year i.e. Decrease of Rs. 2292.14 lakhs (33.83%).

Your Company has achieved total comprehensive income of Rs. 751.14 lakhs as against the previous year of
Rs. 792.98 lakhs i.e. Decrease of Rs. 41.84 lakhs (5.28 %).
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COVID-19

Due to outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the Company's management has made initial assessment
of likely adverse impact on business and financial risks on account of COVID-19. The Company's management
currently believes that the impact is likely to be short term in nature. Given the severity of impact, this financial
year and some part of next financial year 2020-21 are likely to get affected, but also given the measures from
Government and inherent resilience in Indian Economy, next year onwards are expected to show normal growth
scenarios. Accordingly, at present the management does not see any medium to long term risks in the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due, and
compliance with the debt covenants, as applicable.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company does not have any subsidiaries and hence Form AOC-1 is not applicable.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements,
and related information of the Company are available on the website of the Company - www.hindustantin.biz.

DIRECTORS

In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company
Mr. P.P. Singh retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-
appointment.

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia, Whole Time Director/ Executive Director of the Company has resigned from the Board
of the Company w.e.f. 8th June, 2019.

The Board of Directors of the Company has a healthy blend of executive and non executive Directors which
ensures the desired level of independence in functioning and decision making.

All the non executive Directors are eminent professional and bring in wealth of expertise and experience for
directing the management of the Company.

During the year under review, Mr. M.K. Zutshi, Independent Director/ Non Executive Director of the Company,
has resigned from the Board with effect from 26th February, 2020.  Also the Company fulfils the requirement
of Independent Directors in the Composition of its Board of Directors without filling any vacancy created by
such resignation.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors hold office for a fix term of five years and are not liable to retire by rotation.

In accordance with Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, each Independent Director has given a written
declaration to the Company that he/she meets the criteria of Independence as mentioned under Section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

The Board took on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the independent directors regarding
them meeting the prescribed criteria of independence, after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of
the same as required under regulation 25 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its circular dated 22 October 2019 further amended the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 by requiring an independent director to apply online,
by 29th Feb 2020(now extended till 30th Sep 2020), to the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs for inclusion of
his/her name in the data bank of an independent director in any company. The independent directors were
also required to submit a declaration of compliance in this regard. All the independent directors of the Company
have submitted the declaration with respect to the same along with proof of inclusion of his/her name in the
data bank.



12

62ND ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

Key Managerial Personnel

The following persons have been designated as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company pursuant to
Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Act, read with the Rules framed there under.

1. Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia, Chairman*

2. Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia, Chairman*

3. Mr. Sanjay Bhatia, Managing Director

4. Mr. P.P. Singh, Whole-Time Director

5. Mr. Rajat Pathak, Company Secretary

6. Mr. M.K. Mittal, Chief Financial Officer

*None of the Key Managerial Personnel have resigned during the year under review except Mr. Vijay Kumar
Bhatia, Whole Time Director/ Executive Director of the Company has resigned from the Board of the Company
w.e.f. 8th June, 2019. Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia, Whole Time Director of the Company was appointed as Chairman
of the Board on place of Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia w.e.f. 13th November, 2019 till 30th September, 2024 in the
Board Meeting held on 13th November, 2019.

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board carried out annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, its committees and individual directors. The manner in which
the performance evaluation was carried out is given in detail in the Corporate Governance Report, annexed
to this Report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held, particulars of attendance of directors at
the said meetings are given in the report on Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Report.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to directors'
responsibility statement, it is hereby confirmed that: -

(a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
alongwith proper explanation relating to material departures, if any.

(b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March, 2020 and of the profit  of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

(c) We had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) We had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

(e) We had laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. and

(f) We had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A report in the form of Management Discussion and Analysis as per Part B of Schedule V of Regulation 34(3) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015), as a part of
this report is annexed hereto as Annexure - I.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy which was reviewed by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Policy provides for a robust risk management framework
to identify and assess risks such as operational, strategic, financial, security, property, regulatory, reputational
and other risks and put in place an adequate risk management infrastructure capable of addressing these risks.
The Audit Committee of the Company also evaluates Internal financial controls and risk management systems.

LOANS AND INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

Details of loans and investments, if any, made by the Company are given in notes to the financial statements.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the company has not accepted any deposit under Section 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on Corporate Governance, along with a certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company detailing
the compliance of Corporate Governance norms as enumerated in Part C of Schedule V of Regulation 34(3)
of Listing Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, is annexed as Annexure - II.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company has laid down a code of conduct for the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel of
the Company. All Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code
of Conduct for the year 2019-2020. A declaration signed by Mr. Sanjay Bhatia, Managing Director, as to the
compliance of the Code of Conduct by the Board Members and Senior Managerial personnel has been placed
before the Board at its meeting held on 13th August, 2020, is enclosed as Annexure-III.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has in place a whistle blower policy, to support the Code of Business Ethics. This policy documents
the Company's commitment to maintain an open work environment in which employees, consultants and
contractors are able to report instances of unethical or undesirable conduct, actual or suspected fraud or any
violation of Company's Code of Business Ethics at a significantly senior level without any fear of rejection.
Individuals can raise their concerns by an e-mail, or telephone or direct interaction or by a letter to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Company. The Policy on vigil mechanism and whistler blower policy may be
accessed on the Company's website at the link:

http://hindustantin.biz/Uploads/Invester/165Invr_Vigil_Mechanism_Policy.pdf and it duly forms a part of corporate
governance.

DISCLOSURES

The CEO and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have furnished to the Board in its meeting held on 26th June, 2020
a certificate with regard to the financial statements and other matters of the Company as on 31st March 2020
as required under Part B of Schedule II of Regulation 17 (8) of Listing Regulations, 2015.

No material penalty or stricture was imposed on the Company by any statutory authority for non-compliance
on matter related to capital markets, during the last three years.

The Company is complying with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations of Stock Exchanges
on 'Corporate Governance'.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/or Courts which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.
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AUDITORS

Messrs Mukesh Raj & Co, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 016693N), were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the 59th Annual General Meeting held on 27th September, 2017, for a period of
five consecutive years from the conclusion of the 59th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 64th
Annual General Meeting.

The requirement of seeking ratification of the members for continuance of Statutory Auditors appointment has
been withdrawn consequent upon the changes made by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 w.e.f. May
7, 2018. Hence, the resolution seeking ratification of the members for their appointment is not being placed
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors' Report to the Members on the Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 is
a part of the Annual Report. The said Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark. During the year, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the Act, therefore
no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the Act.

COST AUDITORS

Pursuant to section 148 of the Act, and the Rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors had, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, re-appointed Messrs K.S. Bhatnagar & Associates, Cost Accountants
(firm registration no. 102274), to audit the cost accounts of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 on a
remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000/- p.a. subject to ratification by the shareholders at the ensuing AGM. Accordingly,
a resolution seeking members' ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is included in the
Notice convening the AGM.

For the financial year 2018-19, the Cost Auditor has duly filed the Cost Audit Report as per details below:-

Financial year Due date of filing              Date of filing

2018-19 12.09.2019               31.08.2019

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Messrs Gupta Vinod &
Company, Practicing Company Secretaries, ( FCS 3648, CP 2148) as secretarial auditor of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2020, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company and their report
is annexed herewith as Annexure - IV and this report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark.

During the year, your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Companies Secretaries of India.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Board of Directors on recommendation of the CSR Committee already formulated the CSR policy of the
Company. The CSR activities of the Company are implemented in accordance with the core values viz.
protecting stakeholder interests, grow in a socially and environmentally responsible way and striving towards
inclusive development. The Company has implemented various CSR projects in the areas like Promotion of
education & skill development, Healthcare, Rural Development, Drinking Water Project and Clean Environment,
etc. These are in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of CSR expenditure is forming part of annual report and annexed as Annexure - V

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your company believes in formulating adequate and effective internal control system and implementing the
same to ensure that assets and interests of the Company are safeguarded and reliability of accounting data
and accuracy are ensured with proper checks and balances. The internal control system is improved continuously
to meet the changes in business conditions and statutory and accounting requirements as required from time
to time.
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The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
control system and suggests improvements for strengthening them. The Company has a robust Management
information system which is an integral part of the control mechanism.

The Audit Committee of Board of Directors, Statutory Auditors and the Business Heads are periodically appraised
of the internal audit findings and corrective actions taken.

CREDIT RATING

Due to COVID- 19, the Company is initially allowed by Haryana Government to operate partially for supplying
tin cans and components to food sector only (being an essential commodity) and keeping the same in mind,
the Rating Committee of ICRA has revised w.e.f. 16th April, 2020 the long-term rating for the captioned Line
of Credit (LOC) to [ICRA] BBB+ (pronounced ICRA triple B plus) from [ICRA] A- (pronounced ICRA A minus). The
outlook on the long-term rating remains 'Negative'. The Rating Committee of ICRA has also revised the short-
term rating to [ICRA] A2 (pronounced as A two) from [ICRA] A2+ (pronounced as A two plus) for the captioned
LOC.

The rating still derives strength from the Company's significant presence in India's Can Manufacturing sector,
technologically advanced operations, proven management capability.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, framed a policy
to ensure that Company's Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other senior management employees are
sufficiently incentivised for enhanced performance. Remuneration should be reasonable and sufficient to attract
and retain employees. Independent Directors receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings
of Board and Board Committees (where they are members) and other matters, provided under Section 178(3)
of the Act and Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations appended as Annexure VI to the Directors' Report.
The Remuneration Policy of the Company is also available on the website of the Company which is
www.hindustantin.biz.

REMUNERATION

Disclosure pursuant to Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided below:

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the year 2019-20:

Directors Nature of Directorship Ratio

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia* Whole Time Director 2.52:1
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia Managing Director 56.47:1
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia Whole Time Director 32.50:1
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain Non-executive Independent Director 0.87:1
Mr. M.  K. Zutshi** Non-executive Independent Director 0.50:1
Mr. Nand Prakash Sahni Non-executive Independent Director 0.65:1
Mrs. Aarti Sawhney Non-executive Independent Director 0.44:1
Mr. Prit Pal Singh Whole Time Director 7.66:1

 computed based on annualized remuneration.

* Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia, Whole Time Director/ Executive Director of the Company has resigned from the Board of the
Company w.e.f. 8th June, 2019.

** Mr. M.K. Zutshi, Independent Director/ Non Executive Director of the Company, has resigned from the Board with effect
from 26th February, 2020.

(ii) the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year:
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The annual increase in the salary of Managing Director, Whole Time Director, Company Secretary and
CFO is as below:

Name Designation Annual Increase Percentage
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia Managing Director From Rs.89,92,670 /- 15.35 %

to Rs. 1,03,72,863/-
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia* Whole Time Director Rs. 27,82,080/- -

No increase
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia Whole Time Director From Rs. 52,28,233 /- 14.18%

to Rs. 59,69,822/-
Mr. P.P. Singh Whole Time Director From Rs. 13,18,980/- 6.73%

to Rs. 14,07,780/-
Mr. Rajat Pathak VP (Finance) & From Rs. 25,52,045/- 6.61%

Company Secretary to Rs. 27,20,717/-
Mr. M. K. Mittal CFO From Rs. 16,87,898 /- 6.35%

to Rs. 17,95,160/-

* * Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia, Whole Time Director/ Executive Director of the Company has resigned from the
Board of the Company w.e.f. 8th June, 2019.

(iii) the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 8.82%
(iv) the number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 466 (Four hundred Sixty Six), as on 31

March, 2020.
(v) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration:

         The average increase in the remuneration* of employees was 8.54% other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year whereas the average increase in the remuneration of managerial personnel was
6.51%  thus there was not any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

* It does not include incentive bonus, leave encashment, gratuity & payments to LIC of India.
(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:

The remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
Adhering to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, relevant amounts which remained unpaid or unclaimed
for periods of 7 years have been transferred by the Company, from time to time on or before due date to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with IEPF Authority (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 which came into force from September 7, 2016 (including any
amendment thereto or reenactment thereof for the time being in force), all equity shares in respect of which
dividend has not been paid or claimed by the Member(s) for seven consecutive years or more are required to
be transferred to the IEPF Authority, a Fund constituted by the Government of India under Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has communicated individually to the concerned Members to claim
their unpaid / unclaimed dividend amount(s) and that failure to claim the same would lead to their equity
shares being transferred to the IEPF Authority without any further notice. In accordance with the aforesaid IEPF
Rules, during the Financial Year 2019-20 and till date, the Company has transferred shares pertaining to
dividends which remained unpaid and unclaimed, being declared for the years 2008-09,  2009-10 (Interim
and Final), 2010-11 and 2011-12, to the IEPF Authority.
The unclaimed dividends and corresponding shares including all benefits accruing on such shares, if any,
once transferred to the IEPF Authority can only be claimed back from the IEPF Authority, for which details are
available at www.iepf.gov.in.
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The details of Members whose dividends have remained unclaimed / unpaid for seven consecutive years
have been placed on the website of the Company. Members are requested to refer to the "Investor" section
on the website of the Company at http://hindustantin.biz/Uploads/image/47imguf_Details_of_Members.pdf
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013
The Company has been employing women employees in various cadres within its premises. The Company
has in place a policy against Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There was no complaint received
from any employee during the financial year 2019-20 and hence no complaint is outstanding as on 31st
March, 2020.
PERSONNEL
Particulars of employees as required under the provisions of Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is given in Annexure -VII.
PARTICULARS IN RESPECT OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO.
The information in accordance with the provisions of Clause (m) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are forming part of the Directors'
Report for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is given in Annexure - VIII.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All related party transactions entered into by the Company during the year were on an arm's length basis and
were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by
the Company with promoters, directors, key managerial personnel or other designated persons which may
have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis.
Details of such transactions are given in the Annexure - IX to this report.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a)and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies( Amendment)
Act 201 7, an extract of Annual Return (eForm MGT-9) is available on the website of the Company and can be
accessed at link: http://hindustantin.biz/Uploads/image/71imguf_AnnualReturen2020.pdf
BADDI LAND
The District Collector, Solan issued a Show Cause Notice to the Company under Section 118 of the H.P.
Tenancy and Land Reforms Act. It was alleged that the Company has  violated the terms and conditions of
the Section 118 of the H.P. Tenancy and Land Reforms Act. The Collector held that the Company has violated
the provisions of Section 118 of the H.P. Tenancy and Land Reforms Act, therefore, ordered the vestment of
the property in favour of the State of H.P. Being aggrieved, the Company has filed the appeal with Divisional
Commissioner, Shimla and after various hearings, the Divisional Commissioner on 18th March, 2019, passed
order in favor of the Company.
Now, Himachal Pradesh Government has filed revision petition against the said order and the same is pending
adjudication before the Court of financial Commissioner (Appeals) Shimla.
APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board wishes to place on record with deep sense of satisfaction, their appreciation for the high degree of
professionalism, commitment and dedication displayed by employees at all levels and the guidance, co-
operation and assistance extended to the Company by its Bankers, Shareholders, Customers and Suppliers.

For & on behalf of the Board

Place : New Delhi ASHOK KUMAR BHATIA
Date : 13th August, 2020 Chairman
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ANNEXURE-1

THE MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
The Company follows a closely defined business strategy to develop and increase market leadership positions
in key products categories. On an ongoing basis, management focuses on a variety of key indicators to
monitor business health and performance. These indicators include market share, net sales, gross profit margin,
operating profit, net income and earnings per share. The monitoring of these indicators and the Company's
Code of Conduct and Corporate Governance practices help to maintain business health and strong internal
controls.
The investments needed to support the growth are developed through its funding the growth initiatives such
as reduction in costs associated with direct materials, administration cost, distribution and logistics.
Before the COVID-19 pandemic and lockdown, both the RBI and the Central Statistical Office (CSO) of the
Government of India had revised the GDP growth rate downwards. The RBI changed its full year GDP growth
estimate from an initial 7.2% to 5% in December 2019, and ascribed the tapering of growth to a tight credit
market impacting fresh investments, weak capital expenditure and a slowdown in manufacturing.
On 29 May 2020, the CSO released its estimates of GDP and GVA growth for FY2020 and the fourth quarter of
FY2020. In this exercise, it also substantially revised downward its earlier estimates for the first three quarters of
FY2020.
GDP growth was 5.7% in January-March 2019; fell to 5.2% in April-June 2019; then yet again to 4.4% in July-
September 2019; followed by 4.1% growth in October-December 2019 and 3.1% growth in January-March 2020.
GDP growth for FY2020 was 4.2% - the lowest in the last 11 years.
Despite all these, the Company believes that with its experience in operating in the challenging environment
and continued focus to capture significant opportunities for growth by identifying and meeting consumer
needs within its core categories, through its focus on continuing its productions being essential item and since
June 2020 Company has started coming back on track.
THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND LOCKDOWN
The relatively slow GDP growth of around 4% in FY2020 now sounds like a miracle after being engulfed in the
COVID-19 pandemic. On 25 March 2020, India went on to initiate the largest nation-wide lockdown in the
world involving some 1.3 billion people. The full lockdown lasted up to 3 May 2020 and unlocking started from
June 2020.
The 40-days continuous lockdown across India has probably played a significant role in limiting the number of
COVID-19 infections. As of  4 August 2020, India has reported around 19 lakhs confirmed cases of COVID
infections with recovery of around 13 Lakhs.  But this may be an underestimate on account of the lack of
sufficient testing, it is still true that, for its huge population, India has thankfully reported relatively few infections.
Faced with COVID-19, the lockdown and then unlocking, the Company took immediate steps to handle this
force majeure situation. Some of the initiatives were:
• Activated immediately business continuity plans being an essential items producer and now producing

all items, with response teams monitoring the situation and implementing actions in real time.
• Continued operating under a well-defined 'Work-from-Home' Protocol.
• Moreover, all employees were advised to strictly follow the lockdown guidelines of the central and state

governments as well as local municipalities.
• Getting all business partners to quickly get on to digital platforms for two-way communication.
The situation is still evolving and it is difficult to hazard a guess on how this pandemic will evolve. The Company
is focusing on profitability over growth, seeking to conserve cash, borrowing long-term, strengthening collections,
reducing overheads including salaries and also utilizing excess inventories.
OPPORTUNTIES & THREATS
Our Company is one of the leading and established Companies in Metal packaging industry. We are keenly
conscious of the emerging opportunities in the can-manufacturing sector in India as well as abroad and we
shall endeavor to take benefit of every good opportunity in the very best interest of our members.
Following are the opportunity and threats of our Company:
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OPPORTUNITIES
1. Historical established performance.
2. Established customer profile and wide customer base.
3. Reputation for quality, well established brand.
4. Edge in raw material procurement.
5. Ability to expand and diversify.
6. Expansion in export market.
7. Professionally & technically qualified Human Resource.
8. Priority of the Government to promote Food Processing Industry.
9. Innovation and new product development.
10. Environmental concerns against plastic products
THREATS
1. Global & Domestic competition
2. Lower recovery in Global Economy.
3. Volatility in exchange rate (with rupee depreciation).
4. Competition from unorganized sector.
5. Thin margin.
6. Development and innovation in alternate packaging materials
7. Uncertainty in availability of seasonal fruits & vegetables
8. Finance Cost
9. Increased cost of inputs like Tinplate & Labour Cost.
10. US & China Trade War
11. Anti Dumping proceedings initiated by Indian Tinplate Producers.
12. COVID-19 pandemic
PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE
The Company had been mainly focusing on food products and now gradually expanding its base in non food
sector also. In addition Company is also developing new innovative products for domestic and global market.
OUTLOOK
The outlook of the Company seems to be progressive. The management of the Company is engaged in the
task of reducing overheads and other costs. Company has a vision to consolidate its position as leader in
metal packaging segment.
RISK
There is a trend towards alternate packaging which is cheaper as compared to metal packaging with shorter
shelf life inspite of the fact that metal packaging has an edge over them in terms of shelf life, sustainability
etc.
CONCERN
The main concern is the high inflation in the Indian economy resulting into increase in cost of various inputs
particularly Tinplate, rising interest rates and lower recovery in global economy. Further few export consignments
were reportedly damaged in transit during the previous year. The consignments are insured and under
investigation by the insurer, the impact of which is yet to be ascertained on the Company. Since the financial
implication is yet to be quantified, no provision is made in the books.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size and complexity of operations.
The Internal Control systems are aimed at monitoring efficiency of operation, ensuring protection of resources,
accuracy and promptness of financial reporting and compliance with statutes and regulations. All the vital
internal control systems in the Company are working satisfactorily. Our statutory and Internal Auditors have not
reported any serious departure in any of the internal control systems.  The Audit Committee of the Company
regularly reviews internal control systems of the Company and continuous improvements are being made in
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the same. Budgets are prepared every year and the actual performance is compared to the budgeted
performance. The variances are reviewed on a monthly basis and corrective actions are taken accordingly.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE.
Inspite of fierce competition & extremely challenging domestic and international business environment, start
of COVID-19 pandemic, your Company delivers and achieves (net of GST)   Rs. 29768.16 lakhs as against the
previous year's revenue from operations (net of GST)   of Rs. 33635.77 lakhs i.e. Decrease of Rs. 3867.61 lakhs
(11.50%). The Export Sales has been decreased from Rs. 6775.52 lakhs in previous year to Rs. 4483.38 lakhs in
current year i.e. Decrease of Rs. 2292.14 lakhs (33.83%).
The Company has achieved total comprehensive income of Rs. 751.14 lakhs as against the previous year of
Rs. 792.98 lakhs i.e. Decrease of Rs. 41.84 lakhs (5.28 %).
STATUTORY COMPLIANCE
All the statutory compliance with respect to SEBI regulations, provisions of the Listing Regulations, 2015 with the
Stock Exchanges, Income Tax Act, Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, Companies Act, 2013 and all other
applicable Acts, and Rules & Regulations are complied with.
HEALTH & SAFETY
The Company continuously focuses on the health and safety of all its workers and staff. Adequate safety
measures have been taken at the plant for the prevention of accidents or other untoward incident. The
necessary medical facilities are available for the workers and staff to maintain good health.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company recognizes the fact that, beyond the day-to-day conduct of its business, as a responsible
corporate citizen, it has to discharge its duties towards the larger society in which it operates.
The core areas identified by your Company and CSR Committee in order to improve the society are Promotion
of education & skill development, Healthcare, Rural Development, Drinking Water Project and Clean
Environment.
MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL FUND
The Company's ability to deliver value products to clients depends largely on its ability to attract, train, motivate,
empower and retain the best professionals. Annual performance appraisal system is already in place to
evaluate the operational performance of each employee on the basis of predefined Key Responsibility Area.
The Company has 466 permanent employees as on 31st March, 2020.
Industrial relation front continued to be peaceful with no working day loss due to any activity.
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS THEREOF

2020            2019
Debtors Turnover 2.89 3.30
Inventory Turnover 6.28 5.57
Interest Coverage Ratio 1.88 2.31
Current Ratio 1.96 1.67
Debt Equity Ratio 0.75 0.92
Operating Profit Margin (%) 5.27 6.66
Net Profit Margin (%) 2.52 2.36
DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH
The return on net worth is in line with return on sales except impact of reduction in profit due to reduction of
other income on account of decrease in foreign exchange gain in FY 2019-20.
Return on Net Worth (%) 4.98 5.49
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
The statements in the "Management Discussion and Analysis Report" section describes the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations and predictions, which may be "forward looking statements"
within the meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. The actual performance may differ materially from
those expressed or implied, depending upon the economic and climatic conditions, Government policies
and other incidental factors. Such statements represent intentions of the management and the efforts put in
to realize certain goals. The success in realizing these depends on various factors both internal and external.
Investors, therefore, are requested to make their own independent judgment before taking any investment
decisions.
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ANNEXURE-II
REPORT BY DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance is a set of systems and practices to ensure that the affairs of the Company are being
managed in a way which ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all its transactions. The demands
of corporate governance require professionals to raise their competency and capability levels to meet the
expectations in managing the enterprise and its resources effectively with the highest standards of ethics. The
Company believes that good Corporate Governance is essential to achieve long-term corporate goals and
enhance stakeholders' value. The Company has attached significant importance to the Code of Corporate
Governance. The Company's philosophy on corporate governance is to practice transparency in operations
and maintain a professional approach and accountability in dealing with its shareholders. The implementation
of HTWL's Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading exemplifies this spirit of good ethics. The Company has always
focused on maintaining highest standards in conducting its affairs ethically and lawfully and has sustained a
culture of high ethical standards, integrity and professionalism. The Company strongly believes that good
Corporate Governance structure encourages companies to create value that can be sustained over the
long term for customers, shareholders, employees and business partners. The success of the Company lies in
faithful & sincere persuasion of its core values.
The core values of the Company are:
 Manpower Development,
 Integrity, openness, fairness and trust,
 Wealth creator to meet stakeholder expectations,
 Commitment to excellence,
 Customer satisfaction,
 Sound and ethical business practices,
Our Company is subjected to Corporate Governance Code. The Company has constituted various committees
required to be formed under the code.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
a) COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors consists of six directors of which three are Executive Directors and three are Non-
Executive, Independent-Directors. The Board includes Directors with independent standing in their
respective fields / profession and who can effectively contribute to the Company's business and policy
decisions. The composition of the Board meets the requirement stipulated in Regulation 17 of Listing
Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges. In the opinion of the Board, none of the Non-Executive
Directors have any pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company, its promoters or its
management. The Board of Directors of the Company formulates the strategy, regularly review the
performance of the Company and ensure that the objectives are met on a consistent basis.
The composition of the Board and category of Directors are as follows:

Directors Category

*Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia Executive Director
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia Executive Director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia Executive Director
Mr. P.P. Singh Executive Director
Mr. N. P. Sahni Independent/ Non- Executive Director
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain Independent/ Non- Executive Director
**Mr. M. K. Zutshi Independent/ Non- Executive Director
Mrs. Aarti Sawhney Independent/ Non- Executive /Women Director

*Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia, Whole Time Director/ Executive Director of the Company has resigned from the Board of
the Company w.e.f. 8th June, 2019.
**Mr. M.K. Zutshi, Independent/ Non- Executive Director of the Company has resigned from Board with effect from
26th February, 2020.
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia and Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia, Executive Directors of the Company are brothers.
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b) Resignation of independent directors and reasons thereof
During the year, before the expiry of his term Mr. M.K. Zutshi, Independent Director has resigned from Board
w.e.f. 26th February, 2020 due to his ill health and other personal unavoidable circumstances as confirmed
by him in his resignation letter.

c) Board Meetings and Attendance at AGM
During the year the Board of Directors of the Company met on 29th May, 2019, 13th August, 2019, 13th
November, 2019 and 06th February, 2020. Annual General Meeting held on 28th September 2019.

Directors No. of Board No. of Board Attendence No. of other
meetings held Meetings at AGM held Directorship &

during the Attended on 28th Committee Membership
Directors tenure September, Other Committee

in 2019-2020 2019 Directorship Membership

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia* ONE NIL N.A. 1 1
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia FOUR FOUR PRESENT 2 4
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia FOUR FOUR PRESENT - -
Mr. N. P. Sahni FOUR FOUR ABSENT - -
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain FOUR FOUR PRESENT - -
**Mr. M. K. Zutshi FOUR THREE PRESENT - -
Mrs. Aarti Sawhney FOUR FOUR ABSENT - -
Mr. P.P. Singh FOUR THREE PRESENT - -
*Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia, Whole Time Director/ Executive Director of the Company has resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f.
8th June, 2019.

**Mr. M.K. Zutshi, Independent/ Non- Executive Director of the Company has resigned from Board with effect from 26th February, 2020.

d) Independent Directors
The Board includes Directors with independent standing in their respective fields / profession and who
can effectively contribute to the Company's business and policy decisions. Their appointment as
Independent Directors on the Board is considered by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the Management.
Also every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he/she participates as a
Director and thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year or whenever there is any
change in the circumstances which may affect their status as an independent director, submits a
declaration that he/she meets the criteria of independence as provided in the Companies Act, 2013
and in clause (b) of sub regulation (1) of Regulation 6 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its circular dated 22 October 2019 further amended the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 by requiring an independent director to apply
online, by 29th Feb 2020(now extended till 30th Sep 2020), to the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs for
inclusion of his/her name in the data bank of an independent director in any company. The independent
directors were also required to submit a declaration of compliance in this regard. All the independent
directors of the Company have submitted the declaration with respect to the same along with proof of
inclusion of his/her name in the data bank.

e) Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors
Independent Directors are provided with necessary documents, reports and internal policies to enable
them to familiarize with the Company's procedures and practices.
The details of familiarization programme for Independent Directors are hosted on the website of the
Company and can be accessed at the link:
http://hindustantin.biz/Uploads/Invester/134Invr_Familiarizationprogram_for_ID.pdf
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f) Evaluation of the Board's Performance
In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the performance evaluation of the Board as a whole, of the Individual Directors and
various committees were carried out during the year under review. With the help of a structured
questionnaire which was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors,
covering various aspects of the Board's functioning, Board culture, execution and performance of specific
duties, obligations and governance, Board/ Committees Composition, information and functioning,
degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, etc..
The annual performance evaluation of the Board be carried out by the entire Board members. The
annual performance evaluation of Managing Director and Whole time Directors be carried out by all
Directors except himself. The annual performance evaluation of Independent Directors be carried out
by all the Directors except himself/herself, and the annual performance evaluation of all the Committees
be carried out by the entire Board of Directors of the Company. The results of such evaluation are
presented to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors.
The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

g) Review of compliance reports
The Board periodically reviews reports placed by the management with respect to compliance with
various laws applicable to the Company, internal financial controls and financial reporting system.

BOARD COMMITTEES
1. Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee met four times during the financial year 2019-20. The term of
reference of the Committee covers the matters specified for Audit Committee, under Regulation 18 of
the Listing Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Audit Committee consists of the following Directors:
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain Chairman
*Mr. M.K. Zutshi Member
Mr. N. P. Sahni Member
**Mrs. Aarti Sawhney Member
All the members of the Committee are Non-Executive and Independent Directors.
*Mr. M.K. Zutshi, Independent/ Non- Executive Director of the Company has resigned from Committee
with effect from 26th February, 2020 and
**Mrs. Aarti Sawhney, Independent/ Non- Executive Women Director was appointed through resolution
passed by circulation w.e.f 14th May, 2020 in place of Mr. M.K. Zutshi.
The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The Audit Committee
met on 29th May, 2019, 13th August, 2019, 13th November, 2019 and 06th February, 2020.

Name of the Member Meetings attended during the year
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain Four
Mr. M.K. Zutshi Three
Mr. N. P. Sahni Four

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee and its Policy
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Mrs. Aarti Sawhney (w.e.f. 14.05.2020),
Mr. M.K. Zutshi (Ex Chairman), Mr. N. P. Sahni, and Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain (Chairman w.e.f. 24.06.2020).
The term of reference of the committee is to review Company's policy on Director's appointment and
remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a
Director and other matters and recommend compensation payable to executive and Non-Executive
Directors. The Company paid Rs. 1.87 Crores during the current year as remuneration, commission, and
sitting fees to Directors as per detail contained in the notes to accounts.
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on 29th May, 2019, and 13th August, 2019
Name of the Member Meetings attended during the year
*Mr. M.K. Zutshi Two
Mr. N. P. Sahni Two
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain Two

*Mr. M.K. Zutshi, Independent/ Non- Executive Director of the Company has resigned from Committee
with effect from 26th February, 2020 and Mrs. Aarti Sawhney, Independent/ Non- Executive Women
Director was appointed through resolution passed by circulation w.e.f 14th May, 2020 in place of
Mr. M.K. Zutshi.

3. Share Transfer Committee
The Company has a Share Transfer Committee consisting of Mr. Sanjay Bhatia and Mr. Ashok Kumar
Bhatia. The committee meets regularly to approve transfer of shares.
During the year the Share Transfer Committee met on 31st May, 2019, 25th July, 2019, 12th October,
2019, 8th Nov, 2019, 22nd November, 2019, 28th January, 2020 and 05th March, 2020.

4. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
The Company has set up a Stakeholders' Relationship Committee to specifically look into the redressal
of shareholder's and investor's complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet, non-
receipt of declared dividend etc. The Shareholders Committee consists of the following Directors:-
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain (Chairman, Non-executive and Independent)
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia
The committee met on 29th May, 2019, 13th August, 2019, 13th November, 2019 and 06th February,
2020.
Mr. Rajat Pathak, VP (Finance) & Company Secretary is the compliance officer.
During the year ended 31st March, 2020, 34 investors quarries/Complaints were received, all of which
were redressed / replied to the satisfaction of the investors. All valid requests for share transfer received
during the year have been acted upon by the Company. No such transfer is pending for a period
exceeding one month. The status on reply/redressal of investor's complaints is also reported to the Board
of Directors from time to time.

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has a CSR Committee consisting
of the following Members:
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain (Chairman, Non-executive and Independent)
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia
The Committee's prime responsibility is to assist the Board in discharging its social responsibilities by way
of formulating, monitoring and implementation of the framework of Corporate Social Responsibility
policy;
The Committee has also formulated Company's CSR policy within the framework of Rules made under
the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and posted on the website of
the Company.
The core areas identified by the company and CSR Committee in order to improve the society are
Promoting Education, Health Care, Women Empowerment and ensuring sustainability.
The committee met on 29th May, 2019, 13th August, 2019, 13th November, 2019 and 06th February,
2020.
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6. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 13th November, 2019. In the meeting
of independent director following are the directors involve:-
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain Chairman
Mr. N.P. Sahni Director
Mr. M.K. Zutshi Director
Mrs. Aarti Sawhney Director
The meeting was duly constituted and all the directors were present, so there was no leave of absence.
Directors discuss the performance of Non- independent Directors, Board of Directors and the chairman
of the Company and ensure timely and efficient flow of information to the management of the Company.

7. Committees to handle sexual harassment cases
Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual
working in the Company through various interventions and practices. As per the requirement of Companies
Act, 2013, it is duly formed. The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment
at workplace. The policy aims at prevention of harassment of employees as well as contractors and lays
down the guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention of sexual harassment.
The Company has following Committees at the Corporate Office and Plant at Murthal under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

(1) At Corporate Office, Jasola
1. Mrs. Suman Lata Tyagi - Presiding Officer
2. Mrs. Renu Sharma - Member
3. Mrs. Nidhi Raizada - Member
4. Mrs. Bharati Chaturvedi - Director, Chintan Environmental Research and Action Group

(NGO)
(2) At Murthal Plant

1. Mrs Suman Lata Tyagi - Presiding Officer
2. Mrs Nirmala Panchal (NGO) - Director, Nirmala Jagriti Organization, Sonepat
3. Mr P. P. Singh - Member
4. Mr Vipin Kumar - Member
The main purpose of these Committees is to provide protection against sexual harassment of women at
workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and for matters
connected therewith or incidental thereto.
During the year ended 31 March, 2020, the Committee had not received any complaints pertaining to
sexual harassment.

REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS
(A) Details of remuneration paid during the year 2019 - 2020:-

Sl. Name of the  Designation Salary (Rs.) Perq./Allow P.F. Total
Directors (Basic+HRA) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

1. Mr. Sanjay Bhatia M.D. 90,52,800 6,41,103 6,78,960 1,03,72,863

2. Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia W.T.D. 43,75,200 10,69,598 5,25,024 59,69,822

3. Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia* W.T.D. 4,14,000 - 49,680 4,63,680

4. Mr. P. P. Singh W.T.D. 13,88,580 19,200 0 14,07,780

TOTAL 1,52,30,580 17,29,901 12,53,664 1,82,14,145

*Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia, Whole Time Director/ Executive Director of the Company has resigned from the Board of the
Company w.e.f. 8th June, 2019.
As per the agreement, the notice period is three months and there is no severance fees.
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(B) Details of payment of sitting fee paid to Non-executive Directors for attending Board Meeting and
Audit Committee Meeting:-

(Rs.)
1. Mr. N.P. Sahni  1,20,000
2. Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain  1,60,000
3. Mr. M. K. Zutshi 92,500
4. Mrs. Aarti Sawhney  80,000

Total 4,52,500

(C) Details of Shareholding of Directors as on 31st March, 2020.

Mr. Sanjay Bhatia holds 1380169 equity shares, Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia holds 62069 equity shares,
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia holds 595450 equity shares and Mr. P.P. Singh holds NIL equity shares in the
Company. The other non-executive directors do not hold any shares in the Company.

DISCLOSURES
a) Related Party Transaction

All related party transactions entered into by the Company during the year were on an arm's length basis
and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions
made by the Company with promoters, directors, key managerial personnel or other designated persons
which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
During the year ended on 31st March, 2020, there were no material significant transactions with related
parties that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. Attention is drawn
to note no. 31 of the Financial Statements 2019-2020.
The Company's Policy on materiality of related party transactions and on dealing with related party
transactions are hosted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at the link:
http://hindustantin.biz/Uploads/Invester/127Invr_Policy-on-Related-Party-Transaction.pdf

b) Compliance by the Company: -
The Company has complied with requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities
on all matters relating to capital markets during the last three years.

c) Risk Management
Your Company has put a risk management framework in place post a comprehensive review of its risk
management process. The review involved understanding the existing risk management initiatives, zero-
based identification and assessment of risks in the business as also the relative risk mitigation measures
and arriving at the desired counter measures keeping in mind the risk appetite of the organization. The
risk management is a continuous process.
The Company has a procedure to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimization
procedures. The audit committee and the Board of Directors periodically review the risk management
framework of the Company.

d) Penalty
No material penalty or stricture was imposed on the Company by any statuary authority for non-
compliance on matter related to capital markets, during the last three years.

e) Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism
The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism
of reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Company at its Board Meeting held on 12th August 2014
has formulated a whistle blower/vigil mechanism wherein the employees are free to report violations of
laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct to their superior or such other person as notified by the
management to the workgroups. Such reports will be reviewed by the Audit Committee of Directors
from time to time. The mechanism provides that the confidentiality of those reporting violations is
maintained and they are not subjected to any discriminatory practice. This policy is also being posted
on the website of the Company.
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f) Code of conduct for the Directors and senior managerial personnel.
The Company has laid down a code of conduct for the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel
of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct for the year 2019-2020. A declaration to this effect by Managing Director has
been provided as annexure III to Directors' Report.
The Code of Conduct has also been put on the Company's website www.hindustantin.biz The Code has
been communicated to each of them and the compliance of the same is affirmed by them annually.

g) SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015
The Company is complying with all mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations, 2015 of Stock
Exchange on Corporate Governance.

h) Insurance
The Properties and Assets of the Company are adequately insured.

i) Disclosures regarding Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors
As required under Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, particulars of the Director seeking
appointment/ reappointment are given in the Explanatory Statement to the Notice of the AGM.

j) Insider Trading Regulations
The Company has notified and adopted the HTWL Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading
and Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information made pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015. The said HTWL Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading and Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information is published on the website of the Company. In line
with the amendment introduced by SEBI, the above said HTWL Code of Conduct shall be suitably
amended to align it with the amendments which are available with the link: http://hindustantin.biz/Uploads/
Invester/205Invr_CODE-OF-PRACTICES.pdf and http://hindustantin.biz/Uploads/Invester/
210Invr_Code_of_Conduct.pdf effective from April 1, 2019.

k) Payment of Listing Fee
Annual Listing fee for the financial year 2020-21 has been paid by the Company to BSE.

l) Payment of Depository fee
Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the financial year 2020-21 has been paid by the Company to NSDL and
CDSL. The ISIN No. of the Company on both NSDL and CDSL is INE428D01019.

m) Payment of fees to Statutory Auditors
During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has paid the following amounts to
Messrs Mukesh Raj & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company:

INR
Audit Fee - 2,75,000
For Tax Audit - 1,02,500
For other Services - 2,73,000
Reimbursement of Expenses -  64,276

Total - 7,14,776

n) No Disqualification Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice
Certificate from Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta, Company Secretary, confirming that none of the Directors on
the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
or any such other Statutory Authority , as stipulated under Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, is
attached below:
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To,
The Members of
Hindustan Tin Works Limited
426, DLF Tower- A, Jasola,
New Delhi - 110025

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors
of Hindustan Tin Works Limited having CIN L27109DL1958PLC003006 and having registered office at 426, DLF
Tower -A, Jasola, New Delhi 110025 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority :

Sr.No Name of Director DIN Date of appointment
in Company

1 SANJAY BHATIA 00080533 07/08/1992
2 ASHOK KUMAR BHATIA 00081730 04/09/1978
3 NAND PARKASH SAHNI 00037478 23/10/2004
4 RAMESH KUMAR JAIN 00254518 30/12/2005
5 PRIT PAL SINGH 00658785 12/08/2011
6 AARTI SAWHNEY 06869549 28/05/2014

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification.
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Gupta Vinod & Company
Company Secretaries

CS Vinod Kumar Gupta
Practicing Company Secretary
FCS: 3648; CP: 2148
UDIN : F003648B00458872
Place : Delhi
Dated: 15th July, 2020

o) CEO and CFO Certificate

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company give annual certification
on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of
Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer also give
quarterly certification on financial results while placing the financial results before the Board in terms of
Regulation 33(2) of the Listing Regulations. A declaration to this effect has been provided as below.
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
 [Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]
A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best

of our knowledge and belief:
1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or

contain statements that might be misleading;
2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations
B. we are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during

the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity's code of conduct.
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that

we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial
reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies, in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or
propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee, wherever applicable;
1. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
2. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed

in the notes to the financial statements; and
3. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any,

of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity's internal control
system over financial reporting.

For Hindustan Tin Works Limited

Sanjay Bhatia  M.K. Mittal
(Managing Director)  (CFO)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th June, 2020

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
The details of the last three AGMs are as follows: -

AGM Financial Held At  Date and Time Special Resolutions
Year Passed

61st 2018-19 Tivoli Grand, Main G.T. 28th September, 2019 1. Approval of Remuneration of Mr. Sanjay
Karnal Road, Village 10.00 A.M. Bhatia, Managing Director of the
Jind Pur, Delhi- 110036. Company from 01.04.2019 to 30.09.2019,

as per Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018

2. Approval of Remuneration of Mr. Ashok
Kumar Bhatia, Whole-Time Director of
the Company from 01.04.2019 To
30.09.2019, as per Regulation 17(6)(e) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018.
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3. Approval of Remuneration of Mr. Vijay
Kumar Bhatia, Whole-Time Director of
the Company from 01.04.2019 To
08.06.2019, as per Regulation 17(6)(e) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure
Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018.

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Sanjay Bhatia,
Managing Director.

5. Re-appointment of Mr. Ashok Kumar
Bhatia, Whole Time Director.

6. Re-appointment of Mr. Prit Pal Singh,
Whole Time Director.

7. Revision in salary of Mr. Paras Bhatia,
Senior Vice President, Relative of
Directors holding office or place of
profit, for the period from 01.04.2020 to
31.03.2025.

8. Revision in salary of Mr. Saket Bhatia
Senior Vice President, Relative of
Directors holding office or place of
profit, for the period from 01.04.2020 to
31.03.2025.

60th 2018-19 Asha Farms, 27th September, 2018 1. Re-appointment of Mr. N.P. Sahni as
Palla Gaon Road, 10.00 A.M. Independent Director of the Company
Bakhtawarpur, Delhi 2. Re-appointment of Mr. Ramesh Kumar

Jain as Independent Director of the
Company

3. Re-appointment of Mr. M. K. Zutshi as
Independent Director of the Company

4. Re-appointment of Mrs. Aarti Sawhney
as Independent Director of the
Company

59th 2016-17 Asha Farms, 27th September, 2017 1. Revision in Salary of Mr. Sanjay Bhatia,
Palla Gaon Road, 10.00 A.M. Managing Director
Bakhtawarpur, Delhi 2. Revision in Salary of Mr. Vijay Kumar

Bhatia, Whole Time Director.
3. Revision in Salary of Mr. Ashok Kumar

Bhatia, Whole Time Director.
4. Revision in Salary of Mr. P.P. Singh,

Whole Time Director.

No resolution was passed during the year ending 31st March, 2020 through postal ballot.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
a) The Company neither considers necessary, nor beneficial to the shareholders to send half-yearly report to

the shareholders. The Company regularly publishes its financial results at the end of each quarter.

b) Quarterly Results of the Company were published in the Business Standard (English) and Hari Bhumi (Hindi).
These results are also available on the website of the Company and BSE's website.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

AGM: Date, Time and Venue

The 62nd Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be held at 11.00 A.M. on Monday, 28th
September, 2020 at registered office of the Company at 426, DLF Tower A, Jasola, New Delhi- 110025.

Financial Year 1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2020

Date of Book Closure Wednesday, 23rd September, 2020 to Monday, 28th September,
2020 (both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date Wednesday, 30th September, 2020
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Listing on Stock Exchanges

Your Company's shares are listed with the BSE Ltd., Mumbai, Delhi Stock Exchange Ltd., Delhi and Calcutta Stock
Exchange Association Ltd., Kolkata. Your Company is regular in payment of listing fees except for Calcutta Stock
Exchange Association Ltd. & Delhi Stock Exchange Limited in which the Company has filed application for
delisting which are still pending.

Stock Code BSE Code 530315

The market prices high and low during each month at the BSE Ltd during April, 2019 to March 2020 are as follows:

Months High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)
April, 2019 66.95 55.20
May, 2019 64.90 55.00
June, 2019 57.75 49.45
July, 2019 53.85 44.00
August, 2019 63.00 42.00
September, 2019 61.80 50.55
October, 2019 57.00 46.80
November, 2019 54.90 45.00
December, 2019 51.45 44.50
January, 2020 56.00 48.00
February, 2020 51.80 42.00
March, 2020 43.95 23.05

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Messrs Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd.
Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Complex,
Near Dada Harsukh Das Mandir, New Delhi- 110062.
E-mail Id: beetalrta@gmail.com

Share Transfer System

The shareholders can send the shares for transfer to the Company or directly to the Company's Share Transfer
Agent. The Share Transfer Committee holds its meeting regularly to give effect to transfer of shares.

The Company obtains from a Company Secretary in Practice half yearly certificate of compliance with respect
to issue of share certificates as required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations and files a copy of the
said certificate with Stock Exchanges.

Relaxation granted by SEBI in wake of the COVID-19 pandemic

SEBI, considering the nation-wide lockdown, in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic, granted relaxation by
extending the timelines in filing of various compliances to Stock Exchanges viz, Corporate Governance Report,
Shareholding Pattern, Stakeholders' Investor Complaints, Share Capital Reconciliation, Secretarial Compliance
Audit Report, Board Meeting Notice, Holding of Board Meeting, Financial Results, etc.

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

The Company has an agreement with the National Securities Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services
(India) Ltd. with a view to facilitate holding and trading of shares in electronic form. The shares of the Company
are in compulsory Demat form. The shares of the Company are listed with the Stock Exchanges of Mumbai, Delhi
and Kolkata. However, the Company has applied for delisting with the Stock Exchanges of Delhi and Kolkata.

Electronic Clearing Services

The Securities and Exchanges Board of India (SEBI) has made it mandatory for all Companies to use the bank
account details furnished by the Depositories for depositing dividends. Dividend will be credited to the Member's
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bank account through NECS wherever complete core banking details are available with the Company. In case
where the core banking details are not available, dividend warrants will be issued to the Members with bank details
printed thereon as available in the Company's record. This ensures that the dividend warrants, even if lost or stolen,
cannot be used for any purpose other than for depositing the money in the accounts specified on the dividend
warrants and ensures safety for the investors. The Company complies with the SEBI requirement.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total
admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon is
submitted to the Listed Stock Exchanges. The audit confirms that the total listed and Paid-up Capital is in agreement
with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total
number of shares in physical form.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING
Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2020

Sl. No. Particulars No. of Shares %

1. Indian Promoters* 4193161 40.32
2. Resident Individuals/HUF 4646187 44.69
3. Insurance Companies 1022000 9.83
4. Trust 3 0.00
5. Bodies Corporate 350806 3.37
6. Foreign Companies 500 0.00
7. Non Resident Indians 128872 1.24
8. Clearing Member 11896 0.11
9. IEPF Shares  46258 0.44

Total 1,03,99,683 100.00

*9473 Equity Shares were purchased by Mr. Saket Bhatia on 30th March, 2020 and 31st March, 2020 but were in the process of
transfer in his account on 31.03.2020 & thus not taken in above figures. However if included the number of Equity Shares in the
name of Mr. Saket Bhatia, (promoter) as on 31.03.2020 would be 254902 (2.45%) and in the name of all Promoters as on 31st
March, 2020 would be 4202634 (40.41%).

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2020

No. of Equity No. of Share % of No. of % of
Shares held holders Share Shares holding Share

Up To 5000  7751  84.35 976380  9.39
5001 - 10000  748  8.14  626277  6.02
10001 -20000  346  3.76 535048  5.14
20001 -30000  132  1.43  342715  3.30
30001 -40000  51  0.55 184620  1.78
40001 -50000  34  0.37 162237  1.56
50001 -100000  66  0.71 480380  4.62
100001 And Above  61  0.66 7092026  68.19

Total 9189  100.00 10399683 100.00

Plant Location
Village & Post Office-Bhigan,
Dhatoori Road, Tehsil Ganour,
Murthal, Distt. Sonepat (Haryana).
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Address for correspondence.
Mr. Rajat Pathak
VP (Finance) & Company Secretary
Hindustan Tin Works Limited,
426, DLF Tower A,
Jasola, New Delhi - 110025.
Ph. No. 011-4999 8888
E-mail: investorrelations@hindustantin.co.in

IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO MEMBERS
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a "Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance" by allowing
paperless compliances by the Companies and has issued circulars stating that service of notice / documents
including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green initiative of the Government
in full, members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail
addresses and in respect of electronic holding with the Depository through concerned Depository Participants.
CREDIT RATING
Due to COVID- 19, the Company is initially allowed by Haryana Government to operate partially for supplying
tin cans and components to food sector only (being an essential commodity) and keeping the same in mind,
the Rating Committee of ICRA has revised w.e.f. 16th April, 2020 the long-term rating for the captioned Line
of Credit (LOC) to [ICRA] BBB+ (pronounced ICRA triple B plus) from [ICRA] A- (pronounced ICRA A minus). The
outlook on the long-term rating remains 'Negative'. The Rating Committee of ICRA has also revised the short-
term rating to [ICRA] A2 (pronounced as A two) from [ICRA] A2+ (pronounced as A two plus) for the captioned
LOC.
The rating still derives strength from the Company's significant presence in India's Can Manufacturing sector,
technologically advanced operations, proven management capability.
WEBSITE
The Company is maintaining a functional website viz: www.hindustantin.biz and is disseminating the following
information on its website, as required under SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015:
• Details of its business
• Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Director;
• Composition of Board of Directors and its various committees;
• Code of conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel;
• Policy on dealing with related party transactions;
• Policy for determination of Materiality of Event;
• Archival Policy;
• Nomination & Remuneration policy for Directors, KMPs & Senior Management Personnel;
• Corporate Social Responsibility Policy;
• Code of Practices and Procedures for UPSI;
• Details of familiarization programs imparted to the Independent Directors;
• Email address for grievance redressal and contact information of Compliance Officer
• Financial information including notice of meeting of Board of Directors to be held for discussion of

financial  results and annual reports
• Shareholding pattern
• Annual Reports
• Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-Blower Policy
• Details of Unpaid and unclaimed Dividend
NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF SUB-PARAS (2) TO (10)
OF PARA C TO SCHEDULE V OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS
The Company has complied with all the requirements in this regard, to the extent applicable.
COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS AND ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations. The Company has
adopted the following non-mandatory requirements of Regulation 27 read with Part E of Schedule II of the
Listing Regulations:
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(a) Modified opinion(s) in audit report
The Company is in the regime of financial statements with unmodified audit opinion.

(b) Separate posts of Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer
The Chairman is not the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

(c) Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

DISCLOSURES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION
17 TO 27 AND REGULATION 46(2)(B) TO (I) OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS:
All Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements of the Listing Regulations are complied with,
except Regulation 21 and Regulation 24 which are not applicable to the Company.
RE APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Mr. P.P. Singh, retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
DIRECTOR'S PROFILE
A brief resume of the Directors, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas and names of companies
in which they hold Directorships, Memberships / Chairmanships of Board Committees and their shareholding in
the Company are provided below:

 1 Name of Director Mr. Sanjay Bhatia
Date of Birth 10th March, 1952
Date of Appointment on Board 7th August, 1992
Qualification B. Com, LLB
Expertise Business and administration, Legal
Directorship held in other Companies Innopac Containers Pvt. Ltd.
(excluding foreign and private companies) Innopac Abpackaging Pvt. Ltd.(w.e.f. 05.02.2020 earlier

known as petainer Innopac packaging Pvt. Ltd.
Chairmanships/Memberships in PHD Chamber of Commerce and Industry – Chairman
other Company's Committee (PHD Rural Development Foundation), Special Invitee

(Managing Committee)
FICCI- Member of National Executive Committee & Steering Committee
FICCI - President of FICCI Confederation of MSME
Associated Chamber of Commerce (ASSOCHAM)
- Managing Committee Member
Metal Container Manufacturers Association (MCMA)-President
Employees’ State Insurance Corporation- Member of
Standing Committee  (Representing FICCI)
Employees’ Provident Fund Corporation- Member of Central
Board of Trustees (Representing FICCI)

Shareholding of Director 1380169
Relationship between directors inter se Related to Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia, Whole time Director as brother

 2 Name of Director Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia
Date of Birth 02nd June, 1945

Date of Appointment on Board 04th September, 1978

Qualification B. A.

Expertise Business and administration

Directorship held in other Public Companies NIL
(excluding foreign and private companies

Chairmanships /Memberships in other NIL
Company's Committee

Shareholding of Director 595450

Relationship between directors inter se Related to Mr. Sanjay Bhatia Managing Director as brother.
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 3 Name of Director Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain

Date of Birth 07th December, 1957

Date of Appointment on Board 30th December, 2005

Qualification Chartered Accountants

Expertise Accounts, Auditing, Taxation, Corporate laws

Directorship held in other Public Companies NIL
(excluding foreign and private companies

Chairmanships/Memberships in other NIL
Company's Committee

Shareholding of Director NIL

Relationship between directors inter se NIL

 4 Name of Director Mr. P.P. Singh
Date of Birth 10th May, 1962
Date of Appointment on Board 12th August, 2011
Qualification B.SC, LLB & Post Graduate Diploma In Human Resources

Management
Expertise Compliances and Human Resources Management
Directorship held in other Public Companies NIL
(excluding foreign and private companies
Chairmanships/Memberships in other Ministry of Labour and Employment- Member of Minimum
Company's Committee Wage Board (As Employers' representative)
Shareholding of Director NIL
Relationship between directors inter se NIL

 5 Name of Director Mr. N.P. Sahni
Date of Birth 15th April, 1941
Date of Appointment on Board 23rd October, 2004
Qualification MA, LLB, MSC (University of BATH,UK)
Expertise Retired IRS, Direct Taxation
Directorship held in other Public Companies NIL
(excluding foreign and private companies
Chairmanships/Memberships in other NIL
Company's Committee
Shareholding of Director NIL
Relationship between directors inter se NIL

 7 Name of Director Mrs. Aarti Sawhney
Date of Birth 24th October, 1949
Date of Appointment on Board 28th May, 2014
Qualification M.A.
Expertise Ex Chief Commissioner of Income Tax, Retired IRS, Direct Tax

and Administration
Directorship held in other Public Companies NIL
(excluding foreign and private companies
Chairmanships/Memberships in other
Company's Committee NIL
Shareholding of Director NIL
Relationship between directors inter se NIL
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AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of
HINDUSTAN TIN WORKS LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Hindustan Tin Works  Limited,
for the year ended on 31st March, 2020, as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the "Listing Regulations").

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination has been limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said
Listing Regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Mukesh Raj & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN 016693N

Place : New Delhi Mukesh Goel
Date  : 13.08.2020 Partner

M. No. 094837

ANNEXURE-III

DECLARATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)

I, Sanjay Bhatia, Managing Director of Hindustan Tin Works Limited hereby declare that all the Board Members
and senior managerial personnel have affirmed for the year ended on 31st March, 2020 compliance with
the Code of Conduct of the Company laid down for them.

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi Sanjay Bhatia
Date  : 13.08.2020 Managing Director
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ANNEXURE-IV

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2020

To,
The Members
Hindustan Tin Works Limited
426, DLF Tower -A, Jasola,
New Delhi -110025,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Hindustan Tin Works Limited (Bearing CIN No
L27109DL1958PLC003006) (hereinafter called the "Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit and the representations made by the
Company, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available
to us and maintained by Hindustan Tin Works Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March 2020
according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities     and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): -

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
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vi. Other law as are applicable to the Company as per representations made by the Company
a) GST Act
b) The Finance Act
c) Income Tax Act
d) Labour Laws
e) Environmental Laws
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and
General Meeting.

ii. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreement entered
into by the Company with BSE Limited.

iii. The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 along with Corporate Social Responsibility Voluntary
Guidelines, 2009 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India;
Based on our examination and verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records produced to us and according to information and explanations given to us by the
Company, we do report that the Company has in our opinion, complied with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the Rules made thereunder, the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company and the applicable provisions of the above mentioned laws, standards, guidelines,
agreements, etc.

We report that, during the year under review:
1. The Status of the Company during the financial year has been that of a Listed Public Company listed at

the BSE Limited, Delhi Stock Exchange (DSE) & Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE). (Company had applied
for delisting of its shares from Calcutta Stock Exchange and Delhi Stock Exchange and the same are
pending.)

2. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director.

3. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda are sent at least seven days well in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

4. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the
Company have not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by the Statutory
Financial Audit and other designated professionals.
We further report that (as represented by the Company and relied upon by us) there are adequate systems
and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period no events occurred which had a major bearing on the Company's
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.
For Gupta Vinod & Company
Company Secretaries

CS Vinod Kumar Gupta
FCS: 3648 CP: 2148
UDIN : F003648B000549481
Place : Delhi
Dated : 4th August, 2020
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ANNEXURE A

Responsibility Statement

To,
The Members
Hindustan Tin Works Limited
426, DLF Tower -A, Jasola,
New Delhi -110025

Our report is to be read along with the following:

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain responsible assurance
about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we follow provide a responsible basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts
of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Gupta Vinod & Company

Company Secretaries

CS Vinod Kumar Gupta
FCS: 3648 CP: 2148
UDIN : F003648B000549481

Place : Delhi
Dated : 4th August, 2020
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ANNEXURE-V
ANNUAL REPORT ON

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web-link (http://hindustantin.biz/csr.aspx?mpgid) to the CSR policy
and projects or Programmes.
(i) CSR Philosophy

The Company truly believes in sustainable development which is beneficial for the society at large.
It is our co-extensive responsibility to pay back in return to society in terms of helping people and
keeping the environment clean and safe for the benefit of the society.

(ii) Objectives
Our main objective is committed to conduct its business in a socially responsible, ethical and
environmentally friendly manner and to continuously work towards improving quality of life of the
communities in its operational areas.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain - Chairman
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia - Director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia - Director

3. Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years
Average Net Profit - Rs.1396.53 Lakhs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above)
The Company is required to spend towards CSR- Rs. 27.93 Lakhs

5. Details of CSR spend during the financial year
(a) Total amount spent for the financial year 2019-2020 - Rs. 25.97 Lakhs
(b) Amount unspent, if any - Rs. 1.96 Lakhs
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below

Sl. Projects/ Sector Locations Amount outlay Amount Cumulative Amount spent:
No. Activities (budget project spent on expenditure Direct or through

or program the project upto the implementing
wise) Rs. or programs reporting agency

Rs. period Rs.
1. Promoting Preventive Healthcare Delhi NCR 1,20,000 1,20,000 1,20,000 Through St. Stephen's

Health Care Region Hospital Patients
Welfare Society

2. Promoting Education Literacy Delhi NCR 5,01,552 5,01,552 5,01,552 Through Chintan
Region Environmental

Research and Action
Group

3. Rural Development Health Check Haryana 2,13,000 2,13,000 2,13,000 Through PHD Rural
Projects up Development

Foundation
3. Rural Development Construction of Rajasthan 5,81,029 5,81,029 5,81,029 Through PHD Rural

Projects Check Dam Development
Foundation

4. Employment Enhancing Skill Haryana 5,32,000 5,32,000 5,32,000 Through PHD Family
Vocation Skills Development Welfare Foundation

5. Construction of Boundary Promoting Greater 2,00,000 2,00,000 2,00,000 Through Om
Wall etc of Jr. Pathshala Education Noida, UP Construction

Company
6. Promoting  Vocational Skill Delhi NCR 1,80,000 1,80,000 1,80,000 Through Association

Training Course Development Region for Social Health
7. Promoting special Education and Punjab 2,00,000 2,00,000 2,00,000 Through NGO Social

education among the Skill
differently abled Development Action Group

8. Provide Water Cooler, ITI Promoting Haryana 69,620 69,620 69,620 Direct
Murthal Education

Total 25,97,201 25,97,201 25,97,201
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Details of implementing agency:

i. St. Stephen's Hospital Patients Welfare Society, New Delhi

ii. Chintan Environmental Research And Action Group, New Delhi

iii. PHD Rural Development Foundation, New Delhi

iv. PHD Family Welfare Foundation, New Delhi

v. Social Action Group, Punjab

vi. Association for Social Health, New Delhi

vii. OM Construction Co. Greater Noida, UP

viii. ITI, Murthal, Haryana

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board report.

We carry out our CSR activities directly and through other implementing agencies to promote the
region's development. Working at the grassroots level, these activities are mainly spread across Delhi
NCR and other districts in different states across the country and have so far, transformed the lives of
many people. The Company strategically focused on improving livelihood & skill development of the
underprivileged through vocational training, empowering rural marginalised people to make them financially
independent. There is a little shortfall of Rs. 1.96 Lakhs due to COVID outbreak and then complete
lockdown in end March 2020. Despite the shortfall, the Company is confident of incurring CSR expenditure
in FY 2020-21 completely with increased penetration of existing CSR programmes, continuous commitment
to fight against COVID-19 and by initiating new CSR programmes.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance
with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjay Bhatia Ramesh Kumar Jain

(Managing Director) (Chairman CSR Committee)
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ANNEXURE-VI

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF HINDUSTAN TIN WORKS LIMITED
1. Preamble:

a) The Nomination and Remuneration Policy ("Policy") provides a framework for remuneration to be
paid to the members of the Board of Directors ("Board") and Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") and
the Senior Management Personnel ("SMP") of Hindustan Tin Works Limited ('the Company").

b) This Policy has been framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("Committee") of
the Board of Directors ("Board") and based on its recommendation, approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is entitled to review and
amend this policy, if necessary, subject to Board approval.

2. Objective:

The Policy aims to enable the Company to attract, retain and motivate high quality members for the
Board and executives by providing a well-balanced and performance-related compensation package,
taking into account all stakeholders' interest, risks & opportunities, industry practices and relevant corporate
regulations. The objective of the Company's remuneration policy is to ensure that Company's Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other senior management employees are sufficiently incentivised for
enhanced performance. The Policy shall be read along with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the applicable rules thereto and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations,
2015, (hereinafter referred to as LODR).

3. Criteria for Identification of the Board Members and Appointments of Senior Management:

a) The Members of the Board shall be persons who possess appropriate qualifications, skills, aptitude,
attributes, maturity, knowledge and experience. The objective is to have a Board with diverse
background and experience in management functions or in such areas as may be considered
relevant or desirable to conduct the Company's business in an ethical and competitively superior
manner.

b) An Independent Director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and
experience and who shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively and
constructively; exercise responsibilities in a bona-fide manner in the best interests of the Company;
devote sufficient time and attention to professional obligations for informed and balanced decision-
making; and assist the Company in implementing the best corporate governance practices. An
Independent Director should meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16(1)(b) of LODR, concerning independence of directors.

c) The candidate for the appointment of KMP and SMP should possess appropriate qualifications,
skills, aptitude, attributes, with relevant work experience. The candidate for KMP and SMP should
also possess high level of personal and professional ethics, integrity and values.

4. Policy Relating to Remuneration:

I) Policy For Whole-Time Directors/ Managing Director/ Key Managerial Personnel/ Senior
Management Personnel

Remuneration to Whole-time Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel
may involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the Company and its goals. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum
of perquisites and retiral benefits shall be decided and approved by the Board/the Person authorised
by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and
Central Government, wherever required.
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II) Policy for Independent Directors

a) Independent Directors shall receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings
of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed
Rupees One Lakh per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be
prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

b) They shall also receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending the Board
and other Committees Meeting.

5. Evaluation of Performance of Directors, Board as a whole and Committees:

The annual performance evaluation of the Board be carried out by the entire Board members. The
annual performance evaluation of Managing Director and Whole time Director be carried out by all
Directors except himself. The annual performance evaluation of Independent Directors be carried out by
all the Directors except himself/herself, and the annual performance evaluation of all the Committees
be carried out by the entire Board of Directors of the Company. The results of such evaluation will be
presented to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors.

6. Frequency of Meetings:

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such intervals as may be required.

7. Removal:

The Committee/ authorized person wherever applicable may recommend, to the Board with reasons
recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP and Senior Management subject to the provisions and
compliance of the applicable Act, rules and regulations, if any.

8. Amendments to the Policy:

The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit.
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ANNEXURE-VIII

A. Conservation of Energy

a) Energy conservation measures taken : No

b) Additional Investment and proposals : No
if any, being implemented for
reduction of consumption of energy.

c) Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) : NA
above for reduction of energy consumption
and subsequent impact on cost of
production of goods.

B. Technology Absorption

a) Specific areas in which R&D : No

b) Benefit derived as a result of the : No
above R&D.

c) Future plan of action. : No

Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation

1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation - NIL

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

1. Activities relating to export, initiatives taken to increase exports, Development of New Export markets
for products and Services and Export Plan.

The Company has continued to maintain focus and avail of Export opportunities based on economic
considerations. During the year the company has exports worth Rs. 4483.38 Lakhs (Previous year
Rs. 6775.52 Lakhs).

2. Total Foreign Exchange used and earned Rs in Lacs

a. Total Foreign Exchange earned 4291.76 (Previous year Rs. 6558.62 Lakhs)

b. Total Foreign exchange outgo 5322.36 (Previous year Rs. 6078.79 Lakhs)
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ANNEXURE-IX
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third
proviso thereto.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis.

Sl. 

No. 

Name (s) of the 

related party & 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transaction 

Duration of the 

contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transaction 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transaction including 

the value, if any 

Justification for 

entering into such 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions’ 

Date of 

approval by 

the Board 

Amount paid 

as advances, 

if any 

Date on which the special 

resolution was passed in 

General meeting as 

required under first proviso 

to section 188 

                                                                                                                                              NIL 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis.

Sl. 
No. 

Name (s) of the related party & 
nature of relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transaction 

Duration of the 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transaction 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or arrangements 
or transaction including 
the value, if any 

Date of 
approval by  
the Board 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any 

1. Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia  
(Whole Time Director) 

Godown cum 
Office Rent 
Agreement 

6 Years in 
each Board 
Meeting 

In the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm’s 
length basis 
Rent Paid – Rs. 7.92 Lakhs 

11th February, 
2015 and 29th 
May, 2019 

NIL 

2. Parmanand Vijay Kumar 
(Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia, 
Chairman, Mr. Ashok Kumar 
Bhatia, Whole Time Director,  
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia, Managing 
Director, Mr. Gaurav Bhatia son 
of Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia are 
partners in the firm.) 

For sale and 
purchase of 
tinplate sheets 

1 Year in 
each Board 
Meeting 

In the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm’s 
length basis 
Purchase Value – NIL 

14th February, 
2018 and 13th 
February, 2019 

NIL 

3. Innopac (Mrs. Manju Bhatia,  
Mrs. Neha Bhatia and Mr. Saket 
Bhatia (Partners of the firm and 
relatives of Mr. Sanjay Bhatia) 

For sale and 
purchase  of 
Metal Cans and 
Components  

for 1 Year in 
each Board 
Meeting 

In the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm’s 
length basis 
Actual Sale Value – NIL 
Actual Purchase value- NIL 

14th  
November, 
2018 and 13th 
August, 2019 

NIL 

4. Innopac Containers Pvt Limited 
(Mr. Sanjay Bhatia, Managing 
Director is also a Director in this 
Company along with his son  
Mr. Saket Bhatia) 

For sale and 
purchase  of 
Metal Cans and 
Components 

for 1 Year in 
each Board 
Meeting 

In the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm’s 
length basis Actual Sale 
Value – Rs. 52.19 Lakhs 
Actual Purchase Value-  
Rs. 0.14 Lakhs 

14th  
November, 
2018 and 13th 
August, 2019 

NIL 

5. Innopac Containers Pvt Limited 
(Mr. Sanjay Bhatia, Managing 
Director is also a Director in this 
Company along with his son,  
Mr. Saket Bhatia) 

Office Rent 
Agreement 
(Rental Income) 

3 Years in 
each Board 
Meeting 

In the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm’s 
length basis Rs. 1.02 Lakhs 

11th August, 
2017 and 6th 
February, 2020 

NIL 

6. Innopac Abpackaging Private 
Limited (w.e.f. 5.02.2020,  
earlier known as Petainer 
Innopac Packaging Pvt. Ltd.) 
(Mr. Sanjay Bhatia, Managing 
Director is also a Director in  
this Company along with his  
son, Mr. Saket Bhatia.) 

Office Rent 
Agreement 
(Rental Income) 

3 Years in 
each Board 
Meeting 

In the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm’s 
length basis 
Rs.0.34 Lakhs 

13th  February, 
2017 and 6th 
February, 2020 

NIL 

7 Htwl and Innopac 
Crownpackaging pvt ltd.  
(Mr. Saket Bhatia, Senior Vice 
President, Son of Mr Sanjay 
Bhatia, Managing Director of  
the Company.) 

Sale/purchase/job 
work of metal 
cans, 
components and 
plain/lacquered/ 
printed metal 
sheets 

1 year In the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm’s 
length basis Actual Sale 
Value – Rs. NIL 
Actual Purchase Value - 
NIL 
 

06th February, 
2020. 
 

NIL 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Hindustan Tin Works Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S HINDUSTAN TIN WORKS LIMITED ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements").
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,
2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2020,  the profit and total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.No. Key Audit Matter Auditor's response

1. Fair Valuation of investments in unquoted equity Our audit procedures included the following:
The Company has fair valued its non-current - We obtained the last audited financial statements for
investments in unquoted equity and preference the year ended March 31, 2020, where relevant, of
shares of few companies as at the year end. the investee companies and traced the composition of
Determining the fair value of such unquoted the net asset value of such investee companies used in
investments requires valuation techniques which fair valuation exercise, to the same.
have been performed by independent valuation - We read such financial information to determine any
experts, applying applicable valuation method- matters which should have been considered for the valuation
ologies. These investments, being material to exercise, and discussed with the management for the year
these financial statements, was determined to ended March 31, 2020 if there are any other significant
be a key audit matter in our audit. developments since the last audited financial statements.

- We also obtained suitable management representation in
this regard.

2. Revenue recognition Our audit consisted testing of the design and operating
Revenue recognition is significant audit risk effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing
across all units within the Company. Risk exists as follows:
that revenue is recognized without substantial - We evaluated the design of internal controls relating to
transfer of control and is not in accordance revenue recognition.
with Ind AS-115 "Revenue from Contracts with - We selected sample of Sales transactions and tested the
Customers". operating effectiveness of the internal control relating to

revenue recognition. We carried out a combination of
procedures involving enquiry and observation,
reperformance and inspection.
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- We have tested sample of Sale transactions to their
respective customer contracts, underlying invoices and
related documents.

- We have performed cut-off procedures for sample of
revenue transactions at year-end in order to conclude
on whether they were recognised in accordance with
Ind-AS 115.

3. Allowance for credit losses

The Company determines the allowance for We evaluated management's assumption and judgment
credit losses based on historical loss experience involved in estimating recoverability.
adjusted to reflect current and estimated future
economic conditions. The Company considered We evaluated management's continuous assessment of the
current and anticipated future economic assumptions used in the impairment assessment which
conditions relating to industry the Company includes the historical default rates and business environment
deals with. In calculating expected credit loss, in which the entity operates. We assessed the disclosures
the Company has also considered credit made in the financial statements.
reports and other related credit information for
its customers to estimate the probability of
default in future and has taken into account
estimates of possible effect from the pandemic
relating to COVID-19.
We identified allowance for credit losses as a
key audit matter because the Company
exercises significant judgment in calculating
the expected credit losses.
Refer Notes 2.2.8 and 10 (a) to the financial
statements

4. Emphasis of Matter
1. Due to government-imposed shutdowns and due to unavailability of the client personnel it was not

possible to conduct physical verification of inventory as 31st March 2020 or thereafter. However, the
Company conducts physical verification of inventory at regular intervals and such verification was
last conducted in September 2019 and no material discrepancy was observed. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

2. We have not received most of the balance confirmations pertaining to debtors, creditors, and
advances. We have been informed that due to government-imposed shutdowns and due to
unavailability of the client personnel it was not possible for many parties to provide balance
confirmations. We have obtained reasonable assurance by performing other audit procedures. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

5. Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement in this
Board Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

6. Management's Responsibility for the financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these  financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
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of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

7. Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matter, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
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other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement & statement of
changes in capital dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account and with the
return received.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over the financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure A". Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial controls over the financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its

financial statements;
ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses; and
iii) There are no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund by the Company.
2. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure
B", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

For Mukesh Raj & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Reg. No: 016693N

Place : New Delhi Mukesh Goel
Date  : 26/06/2020 Partner
UDIN : 20094837AAAADB8787 M.No. 094837



51

62ND ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the financial statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HINDUSTAN TIN WORKS LIMITED ("the
Company") as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the  financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
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and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the
Management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31stMarch, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Mukesh Raj & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Reg. No: 016693N

Place : New Delhi Mukesh Goel
Date  : 26/06/2020 Partner
UDIN : 20094837AAAADB8787 M.No. 094837
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditors report on financial Statements of

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading, "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of
our report of even date)

(i) In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased
manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based
on the examination of the conveyance deeds / registered sale deed provided to us, we report
that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are
freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of
immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as
Investment properties in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the
Company.

(ii) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans,
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not
receive any deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules framed there
under with regard to deposits accepted from the public during the year.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the company pursuant to the
companies (cost records and audit) Rules read with companies (cost records and audit) amendment
rules, 2014 specified by central government under section 148 of the act, and we are of the opinion
that prima facie the prescribed records have been maintained.

(vii)    In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally regular in
depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, Cess, Goods & service tax and any other statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(c) Details of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, TDS which have not been deposited as at
March 31, 2020 on account of dispute are given below:
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Disputes with Authority Financial year 31-Mar-19
Central Sales Tax 1995-96 1,25,300
Central Sales Tax 1996-97 2,15,400
Central Sales Tax 1997-98 1,92,000
Income Tax 2005-06 2,15,681
Income Tax 2010-11 8,12,620
Income Tax 2013-14 1,60,000
Income Tax 2015-16 1,57,940
TDS 2015-16 70,729

The order for above dues of Central Sales tax is held in favor of department by high court. However no
demand is made till now by department.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks. The Company does not have any
debenture holders.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied by the
Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(xi) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, Clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the
records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
section 188 of the act where applicable and details of such transaction have been disclosed in the
financial statements (refer note no. 30 to the financial statements) as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable
to the Company

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, Clause (xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Mukesh Raj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg.No: 016693N

Place : New Delhi Mukesh Goel
Date  : 26/06/2020 Partner
UDIN : 20094837AAAADB8787 M.No. 094837



55

62ND ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020
Notes As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 80,42,92,973 77,82,14,739
Right-of-use assets 5 47,68,709 -
Capital work-in-progress 2,03,29,371 6,60,74,057
Other intangible assets 6 11,156 50,725
Financial assets 7

Investments 7 (a) 11,49,98,050 11,49,98,050
Other financial assets 7 (b) 94,43,475 2,84,57,455

Other non-current assets 8 70,42,592 18,10,613

96,08,86,326 98,96,05,639
Current assets
Inventories 9 38,53,23,687 50,45,98,396
Financial assets 10

Trade receivables 10 (a) 1,04,50,33,286 1,01,35,42,858
Cash and cash equivalents 10 (b) 3,22,36,653 4,32,39,302
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10 (c) 1,58,37,670 2,10,48,478
Loans 10 (d) 6,63,50,000 6,78,50,000
Other financial assets 10 (e) 4,70,19,461 2,00,34,798

Current tax assets (net) 19 1,29,21,695 25,90,356
Other current assets 11 6,71,03,285 11,82,67,792

1,67,18,25,737 1,79,11,71,980

Total assets 2,63,27,12,063 2,78,07,77,619

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 12 10,39,96,830 10,39,96,830
Other equity 1,40,34,40,299 1,34,08,64,012

Total equity 1,50,74,37,129 1,44,48,60,842
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 13 19,13,55,307 17,73,54,025
Lease liabilities 5 29,71,155 -

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 5,58,84,417 7,95,08,229
Other non-current liabilities 15 2,04,04,675 61,64,575

27,06,15,554 26,30,26,829
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 16

Borrowings 16 (a) 41,02,60,474 65,49,55,733
Trade payables 16 (b) 31,84,54,275 16,35,48,685
Lease liabilities 5 21,62,373 -
Other financial liabilities 16 (c) 9,91,82,209 22,37,87,447

Other current liabilities 17 1,82,70,198 2,82,13,608
Provisions 18 63,29,851 23,84,475

85,46,59,380 1,07,28,89,948

Total liabilities 1,12,52,74,934 1,33,59,16,777

Total equity and liabilities 2,63,27,12,063 2,78,07,77,619

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Mukesh Raj & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Hindustan Tin Works Limited
FRN No. : 016693N

Sanjay Bhatia Ashok Kumar Bhatia
Mukesh Goel Managing Director Whole Time Director
Partner DIN: 00080533 DIN: 00081730
Membership No.: 094837

Rajat Pathak M. K. Mittal
Place : Delhi VP (Finance) & AVP (Accounts) & CFO
Date: 26th June, 2020 Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Notes INR INR

Continuing operations
Income
Revenue from operations 20 2,97,68,15,888 3,36,35,77,691
Other income 21 5,12,37,826 5,45,89,779

3,02,80,53,714 3,41,81,67,470

Expenses
Cost of materials and components consumed 22 1,83,80,73,432 2,01,98,47,306
Purchases of traded goods 42,08,82,702 54,10,14,548
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress and stock-in-trade 23 4,73,95,834 4,84,92,446
Employee benefits expense 24 25,84,30,717 25,44,12,349
Finance costs 25 9,59,35,495 10,82,25,529
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 8,57,04,793 7,63,38,983
Other expenses 27 20,81,08,311 24,29,31,871

Total expenses 2,95,45,31,284 3,29,12,63,032

Profit/(loss) before tax 7,35,22,430 12,69,04,438
Tax expense:
Current tax 14 2,08,96,604 4,31,99,335
Adjustment of tax for earlier years 1,25,264 15,64,776
Deferred tax credit 14 (2,36,23,812) 31,94,885

(26,01,944) 4,79,58,996

Profit for the year 7,61,24,374 7,89,45,442
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent  periods:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (13,50,660) 5,42,351
Income tax gains / (expense) effect 14 3,39,934 (1,89,552)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent  periods (10,10,726) 3,52,799

Total comprehensive income for the year 7,51,13,648 7,92,98,241

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share 28 7.22 7.63
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Mukesh Raj & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Hindustan Tin Works Limited
FRN No. : 016693N

Sanjay Bhatia Ashok Kumar Bhatia
Mukesh Goel Managing Director Whole Time Director
Partner DIN: 00080533 DIN: 00081730
Membership No.: 094837

Rajat Pathak M. K. Mittal
Place : Delhi VP (Finance) & AVP (Accounts) & CFO
Date: 26th June, 2020 Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Operating activities
Profit before tax 7,35,22,430 12,69,04,438
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,15,77,148 7,61,94,741
Depreciation on right-of-use assets  40,73,676 -
Amortisation of intangible assets  53,969 1,44,242
(Profit) / Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (15,757) (11,64,303)
Provision for doubtful debts 41,84,318 -
Balances written off 41,379  40,78,144
Excess liabilities or provisions written back (2,12,887) (30,73,231)
Finance income (1,36,18,606) (1,24,44,567)
Finance costs 9,59,35,495 10,82,25,529

24,55,41,165 29,88,64,993
Working capital adjustments:

(Increase)/Decrease in trade, other financial assets and other assets 91,51,897 9,27,24,529
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 11,92,74,709 10,74,82,917
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 15,27,88,016 (15,52,98,413)
Decrease in provisions 39,45,376 (2,12,433)

53,07,01,163 34,35,61,593
Income tax paid (3,10,13,273) (5,64,38,617)
Net cash flow from operating activities 49,96,87,890 28,71,22,976
Investing  actvities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10,65,206 26,91,413
Purchase of fixed assets including CWIP and capital advances (6,89,54,596) (11,20,17,445)
Proceeds from / (Investments in) fixed deposits with original
maturities more than 3 months 52,10,808 (7,75,254)
Loans (given)/proceeds received (net) 15,00,000 2,45,24,997
Interest received (finance income) 1,21,40,611 1,47,45,793
Net cash flows used in investing activities (4,90,37,971) (7,08,30,496)
Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 8,22,05,266 19,82,91,069
Repayment of long-term borrowings (18,63,67,541) (11,69,54,428)
Payment of lease liablities (37,08,858) -
Proceeds from /(repayment) of short-term borrowings (24,46,95,259) (17,15,33,363)
Dividends paid including dividend distribution tax   (1,24,45,778)   (1,25,32,069)
Interest paid   (9,66,40,398) (10,87,53,014)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing  activities (46,16,52,568) (21,14,81,805)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,10,02,649) 48,10,675
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,32,39,302 3,84,28,627
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 3,22,36,653 4,32,39,302
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 7,98,545 5,38,288
Balances with banks in current accounts 1,07,17,698 4,12,67,817
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 2,07,20,410 14,33,197

3,22,36,653 4,32,39,302
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Mukesh Raj & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Hindustan Tin Works Limited
FRN No. : 016693N

Sanjay Bhatia Ashok Kumar Bhatia
Mukesh Goel Managing Director Whole Time Director
Partner DIN: 00080533 DIN: 00081730
Membership No.: 094837

Rajat Pathak M. K. Mittal
Place : Delhi VP (Finance) & AVP (Accounts) & CFO
Date: 26th June, 2020 Company Secretary
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information

Hindustan Tin Works Limited ("the Company") is a public company incorporated on 11th December,
1958; equity shares of the company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange, Calcutta Stock Exchange
and Delhi Stock Exchange. The company is engaged mainly in the business of Manufacturing of Tin
Cans, Printed/Lacquered Sheets, Components and trading in Tin Plates.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS),
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") (to the extent
notified) and the guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendments issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
is adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest rupees, except when otherwise indicated.

These financial statements are authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
26th June, 2020.

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.2.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Company

Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, effective April 1,
2018, on a modified retrospective basis, applying the standard to all contracts that are not completed
as such date. The adoption of Ind AS 115 did not have any significant financial impact and accordingly,
no adjustments are made to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The adoption has
resulted in changes to accounting policies and mandated certain disclosures. Refer note no 2.2.4
below for accounting policies.

2.2.2 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS recognition and measurement principles
and, in particular, making the critical accounting judgments require the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Management reviews its
estimates on an ongoing basis using currently available information. Changes in facts and circumstances
or obtaining new information or more experience may result in revised estimates, and actual results
could differ from those estimates.

2.2.3 Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

The Company presents current and non-current assets, and current and non-current liabilities, as separate
classifications in its statement of financial position on the basis of realization of assets.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

  • expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle



60

62ND ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

  • held primarily for the purpose of trading

  • expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

  • cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

  A liability is classified as current when:

  • it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

  • it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

  • it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

  • there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified
as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.2.4 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed to inventory and credit risks.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods and scrap

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of Tin Cans, Printed/Lacquered Sheet, Components
of tin cans and trading in Tin Plates.

Revenue is recognized at the point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied and control of
the goods is transferred to the customer in accordance with the terms of customer contracts. In case
of domestic customers, generally revenue recognition take place when goods are dispatched and in
case of export customers when goods are shipped onboard based on bill of lading as per the terms of
contract. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted
for trade discounts, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from customers.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods to the customer for which the Company has
received consideration from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods to the customer and payment by the customer exceed one year. As a consequence,
the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Interest income

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.



61

62ND ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

Others

Income from export incentives such as duty export incentives are recognized on the eligibility and
when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

2.2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Cost includes all related costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. Except for land, property, plant and equipment is
depreciated using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets as presented in
Schedule 2 of Companies Act, 2013.

Major improvements, which add to productive capacity or extend the life of an asset, are capitalized,
while repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Where a property, plant and
equipmentcomprises major components having different useful lives, these components are accounted
for as separate items.The depreciation expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the
expense category consistent with the function of the property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment under construction is recorded as capital work- in-progress until it is
ready for its intended use; thereafter it is transferred to the related class of property, plant and equipment
and depreciated over its estimated useful life. Interest incurred during construction is capitalized if the
borrowing cost is directly attributable to the construction.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if expectations differ from previous estimates. Depreciation methods applied to
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and changed if there has been a
significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the asset.

2.2.6 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit or loss when it is
incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite. Intangible assets are amortized over their
useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.
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2.2.7 Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's or Cash Generating Unit (CGU)'s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared
separately for each of the Company's CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets
and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

2.2.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, fair value through OCI or at amortized cost as appropriate. The Company determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of assets not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

The Company has the following financial assets in its statement of financial position

• Investments
• Cash
• Bank Balances
• Trade Receivables
• Loans
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described
below:

Financial assets at FVTPL or FVTOCI

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
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assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value presented as finance income
(positive net changes in fair value) or finance costs (negative net changes in fair value) in the
statement of profit or loss.The Company has not designated any financial assets upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Financial assets at amortised cost

This category is the most relevant to the Company. All Trade and Other Receivables, Loans and
Advances fall under this category. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for
receivables. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:

  • The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

  • The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a 'pass-through' arrangement, and eitherthe Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The objective of the company in recognising the impairment allowance is to recognise lifetime
expected credit losses for all financial instruments for which there have been significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition - whether assessed on an individual or collective basis - considering
all reasonable and supportable information, including that which is forward-looking.

Credit Losses are the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive (ie
all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). Expected Credit Losses
are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
weights.

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that is
measured at amortized cost at each reporting date, at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the company uses the change in the risk of a default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount
of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider reasonable and supportable
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information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if it is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date.

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.For Trade receivables the company always
measure the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses whether impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The Company measures expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes, the time value of money; and the reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the gross carrying amount using the effective rate of interest unless the financial
instrument is credit-impaired in which case the interest income is recognised on reduced carrying
amount. The interest income is recorded as part of finance revenue in the statement of profit or
loss.

Loans, together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Company. If,
in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.

ii. Financial Liabilities

The Company has the following financial liabilities in its statement of financial position

• Borrowings

• Trade payables

• Other Financial Liabilities
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Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss
are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS109 are satisfied.
The Company has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to notes payable, short-term loans and overdrafts.

iii. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position only if there is a current enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and an intent to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

iv. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair values of the
financial instruments are not materially different at the reporting date.

2.2.9 Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Bank Balances in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand
and fixed deposits with banks, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they
are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.
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2.2.10 Leases

Company as a lessee

Policy applicable before April 1, 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Finance leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and a reduction in the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Policy applicable after April 1, 2019

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective from April 1, 2019 using modified retrospective
approach. For the purpose of preparation of Financial Information, management has evaluated the
impact of change in accounting policies required due to adoption of lnd AS 116 for year ended
March 31, 2020. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Company
assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right of- use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of- use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments,
including in substance fixed payments; The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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The Company has used number of practical expedients when applying Ind AS 116: - Short-term leases,
leases of low-value assets and single discount rate.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date.

The Company's leases mainly comprise land and buildings and Plant and equipment. The Company
leases land and buildings for warehouse facilities. The Company also has leases for equipment.

Company as lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

2.2.11 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur.

2.2.12 Provisions

General Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit or loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as a finance cost.

2.2.13 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the company in exchange for service
rendered by employees. Employee benefits include: short-term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits and other long-term employee benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the company during an accounting period, the company
recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for that service as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid and as an
expense. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated
as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date.
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Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

When an employee has rendered service during the year, the company recognises the contribution
payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense)
and as an expense.

Defined Benefit Plan

Defined benefit plans are those plans that provide guaranteed benefits to certain categories of
employees, either by way of contractual obligations or through a collective agreement.

The company operates unfunded defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each fiscal year
end. The obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

Current service cost, which is the increase of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from the employee service in the current period, is recorded as an expense as part of cost of
sales and selling, general and administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The interest
cost, which is the change during the period in the defined benefit liability that arises from the passage
of time, is recognized as part of financing costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2.2.14 Foreign Currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the company's
functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the
functional currency spot rate at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value in the item.

2.2.15 Income Tax

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in
India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date. Deferred Tax Expense or Income arises due to temporary differences are
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differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position
and its tax base. Temporary differences may be either taxable temporary differences, which are
temporary differences that will result in taxable amounts in determining taxable profit (tax loss) of future
periods when the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled or deductible temporary
differences, which are temporary differences that will result in amounts that are deductible in determining
taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods when the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered
or settled. A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised. A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

2.2.16 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

i. Raw materials and Stores and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in,
first out basis.

ii. Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

iii. Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.2.17 Segment Reporting

Identification of segments

The Company's operating business are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products/services. The Company operates in two geographical segments: Domestic and
International markets.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of
each segment to the total common costs.

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to
any business segment.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted
for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

2.2.18 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.2.19 Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined
based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

3. Recent changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a
result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described below. Several other amendments
apply for the first time for the year ending March 31, 2020, but do not have an impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

(i) Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining
whether  an  Arrangement contains a  Lease,  Appendix  A  of  Ind  AS  17  Operating  Leases-Incentives
and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease). The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to  recognise most  leases on  the  balance sheet.  Lessor  accounting
under  Ind  AS  116  is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not
have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor. The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using
the modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application being April 01,
2019. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease at April 01, 2019. Instead, the Company applied the standard only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of
initial application. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts
that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a
purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value
(low-value assets).

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases for which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases and leases of low- value assets. The
Company recognised lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets. In accordance with the modified retrospective method of adoption,
the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate as on the date of transition and has measured right of
use asset an amount equal to lease liability.
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5.   Right-of-use assets

Plant and Land and Total
Machinery building

INR INR INR

Balance as at April 1, 2019 - - -
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 19,31,005 63,31,566 82,62,571
Additions - 5,79,814 5,79,814
Deletion - - -
Depreciation 18,66,705 22,06,971 40,73,676

Balance as at March 31, 2020 64,300 47,04,409 47,68,709

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 is as follows

Particulars 31-Mar-20

Current lease liabilities 21,62,373
Non-Current lease liabilities 29,71,155

Total 51,33,528

The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows :

Particulars 31-Mar-20

Balance at the beginning 82,62,589
Additions 5,79,814
Finance cost accrued during the period 9,57,750
Deletions -
Payment of lease liabilities 46,66,608

Balance at the end 51,33,545

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 on an undiscounted basis are as
follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-20

Less than 1 year 21,41,676
More than 1 year 38,69,040

Total 66,10,716

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
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6.  Other intangible assets As at 31-Mar-20 As at 31-Mar-19

Computer Software Total
INR INR

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2018 24,17,621 24,17,621
Additions - -
Disposals (15,16,090) (15,16,090)

At 31 March 2019 9,01,531 9,01,531
Additions 14,400 14,400

At 31 March 2020 9,15,931 9,15,931

Depreciation and  impairment
At 1 April 2018 22,22,654 22,22,654
Deprecation charge for the year 1,44,242 1,44,242
Disposals (15,16,090) (15,16,090)

At 31 March 2019 8,50,806 8,50,806
Deprecation charge for the year 53,969 53,969

At 31 March 2020 9,04,775 9,04,775

Net book value
At 31 March 2020 11,156 11,156
At 31 March 2019 50,725 50,725

7.   Non-current financial assets

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

(a) Investments
Investments at fair value through OCI (fully paid)
Unquoted equity shares
79,309 equity shares of Shree Uttam Steel and Power Limited  11,49,98,050 11,49,98,050

 11,49,98,050 11,49,98,050

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  11,49,98,050 11,49,98,050
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -  -

(b) Other financial assets
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)* 94,05,483 99,38,258
Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months 37,331 1,63,96,192
Interest receivable on bank deposits 661 21,23,005

  94,43,475 2,84,57,455

* Security deposits have been given to various public authorities such as electricity departments and do not have
fixed maturity periods
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8.   Other non-current assets

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Capital advances 69,16,559 14,88,378
Prepaid expenses 1,26,033 3,22,235

70,42,592 18,10,613

9.   Inventories

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Raw material(including goods in transit Rs. 2,88,73,807,
Previous year Rs. Nil) 25,74,02,028 32,90,12,763
Work-in-progress 6,31,54,263 7,45,49,672
Finished goods (including goods in transit Rs. NIL ,
Previous year Rs. 2,06,72,930) 5,81,07,003 8,55,47,086

Traded goods 9,39,175 94,99,517
Stores and spares 57,21,218 59,89,358

38,53,23,687 50,45,98,396

10.   Current financial assets

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

(a) Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 1,04,50,33,286 1,01,35,42,858
Considered doubtful 1,64,45,590 1,22,61,272

1,06,14,78,876 1,02,58,04,130
Less: provision for doubtful debts (1,64,45,590) (1,22,61,272)

1,04,50,33,286 1,01,35,42,858

Notes:
1. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 180 days.

2. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly
with any other person. Trade receivables include due from firms or private companies in which any director
is a partner or a member Rs. 36.82 Lakhs (31 March 2019: Rs. 24.26 Lakhs)

(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 7,98,545 5,38,288
Balances with banks in current accounts 1,07,17,698 4,12,67,817
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months* 2,07,20,410 14,33,197

3,22,36,653 4,32,39,302
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10. Current financial assets (Continue...)

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

(c) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months 1,51,18,104 1,92,95,495
but less than 12 months*

Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months* - 11,25,000

Earmarked balances with banks for unclaimed dividends 7,19,566 6,27,983

1,58,37,670 2,10,48,478

*The Company has pledged its term deposits in order to fulfil the collateral requirements for the fund limits with
banks, tax authorities etc.

(d) Loans

Unsecured, considered good

Loans given 6,63,50,000 6,78,50,000

6,63,50,000 6,78,50,000

(e) Other financial assets

Interest receivable 2,22,04,229 1,86,03,890

Security deposits 9,02,043 8,04,119

Insurance Claim Receivable 2,21,95,000 -

Other recoverables 17,18,189 6,26,789

4,70,19,461 2,00,34,798

11. Other current assets

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Advances to vendors 1,86,97,465 1,82,13,415

Export incentives receivable 97,65,728 1,53,77,456

Taxes recoverable 3,45,37,445 7,85,26,386

Net defined benefit asset - 2,45,563

Prepaid expenses 33,74,330 50,85,323

Other recoverables 7,28,317 8,19,649

6,71,03,285 11,82,67,792

Taxes Recoverable includes Terminal Excise Duty Rs. 46,53,935/ which is recoverable from DGFT as per the order of
Hon'ble Delhi High Court dated 8/10/2018.
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12. Equity share capital

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Authorised shares
2,50,000 (31 March, 2018: 2,50,000) 12% redeemable
cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each  25,00,000 25,00,000
1,22,50,000 (31 March, 2018: 1,22,50,000 ) equity shares of INR 10 each 12,25,00,000 12,25,00,000

12,50,00,000 12,50,00,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
1,03,99,683 (31 March, 2018: 1,03,99,683 ) equity shares of INR 10 each  10,39,96,830 10,39,96,830

 10,39,96,830 10,39,96,830

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares

 As at As at
 March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

 No.  INR  No. INR

At the beginning of the period 1,03,99,683 10,39,96,830 1,03,99,683 10,39,96,830

Issued during the period  -  -  -  -

Outstanding at the end of the period 1,03,99,683 10,39,96,830 1,03,99,683 10,39,96,830

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has issued only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder  As at As at
 March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

 No.  % holding  No. % holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Mr. Sanjay Bhatia 13,80,169 13.27% 13,80,169 13.27%

Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia 5,95,450 5.73% 5,95,450 5.73%

United India Insurance Co. Ltd. 5,22,000 5.02% 5,22,000 5.02%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents beneficial ownerships of shares.
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13. Non-current financial liabilities

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Borrowings
Vehicle loans 1,53,14,520 85,16,459
Foreign currency term loans 18,33,08,009 22,43,75,137
Term loans from banks 6,30,38,072 13,29,31,280

26,16,60,601 36,58,22,876

Less: Current maturities of long term debt disclosed under 7,03,05,294 18,84,68,851
the head "Other current financial liabilities"

19,13,55,307 17,73,54,025

Notes:
a. Vehicle loans

1. Vehicle loans carry varies interest rate  from 8.70% to 9.40% and repayable within 3 years to 5 years. These
loans are secured by hypothecation of vehicles purchased for which loan is received.

b. Foreign currency Term loan

The following Foreign Currency term loans are secured by pari-passu first charge on movable Fixed Assets of the
company both present and future and Equitable Mortgage of immovable Murthal Property being Land &
Building in addition by second charge on all existing and future current assets of the company and guaranteed
by Directors.

1. Foreign currency term loans from Kotak Bank Limited

i. Rs. 53.62 lakhs loan is taken in FCTL carrying interest link to the LIBOR ( hedged at ) 1.60% +4.00
repayable monthly installments upto October, 2020. The loan is secured by first and exclusive Equitable
Mortgage Charge on immovable Fixed Assets of the company being JA-0818 and JA- 0819 Jasola
Office premises New Delhi  and guaranteed by Directors namely S/Sh.  Ashok Bhatia and Sanjay
Bhatia.

ii. Rs.1108.65 lakhs loan is taken in FCTL carrying interest link to the LIBOR  5.55% in all  repayable monthly
installments upto March, 2024. The loan is secured by pari-passu first charge on movable Fixed Assets
of the company both present and future and Equitable Mortgage of immovable Murthal Property in
addition by second charge on current assets of the company and guaranteed by Directors namely
S/Sh. Ashok Bhatia and Sanjay Bhatia.

iii. Rs.581.77 lakhs loan is taken in FCTL carrying interest link to the LIBOR  5.15% in all  repayable monthly
installments starting from January 2021 upto December, 2026. The loan is secured by pari-passu first
charge on movable Fixed Assets of the company both present and future and Equitable Mortgage of
immovable Murthal Property in addition by second charge on current assets of the company and
guaranteed by Directors namely S/Sh. Ashok Bhatia and Sanjay Bhatia.

2. ECB from Standard Chartered Bank - Rs. 89.02 lakhs.

The loan carries interest rate LIBOR  ( Hedged at) 1.40%+3.00% rate repayable in quarterly instalment upto
July 2020. The loan is secured by pari-passu first charge on movable Fixed Assets of the company both
present and future and Equitable Mortgage of immovable Murthal Property in addition by second charge
on current assets of the company and guaranteed by Directors namely S/Sh.  Ashok Kumar Bhatia, Sanjay
Bhatia and Vijay Kumar Bhatia.

c. Term Loan From Banks

Term loan from HDFC Bank – Rs. 630.38 lakhs. The loan carries interest rate @ one year MCLR 9.40% , repayable
in quarterly  installment upto June 2023. The term loan is secured by pari-passu first charge on movable Fixed
Assets of the company both present and future and Equitable Mortgage of immovable Murthal Property in
addition by second charge on current assets of the company and guaranteed by Directors namely S/Sh. Ashok
Kumar Bhatia and Sanjay Bhatia.
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14. Income Taxes

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are:

Profit or loss section

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Current tax:

Current income tax charge  2,08,96,604 4,31,99,335

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (2,36,23,812) 31,94,885

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss  (27,27,208) 4,63,94,220

OCI section

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans  3,39,934 (1,89,552)

Income tax charged to OCI 3,39,934 (1,89,552)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2020 and
31 March 2019:

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Accounting profit before tax  7,35,22,430  12,69,04,438

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168%
(31 March 2019: 34.944%)  1,85,04,125 4,39,19,088

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years  1,25,264 15,64,776

Disallowance under rule 8D  2,89,432 4,01,856

Non-deductible CSR expenditure and donations 6,82,481 9,99,734

Other non-deductible expenses 7,194  11,701

Effect of change in income tax rate applicable on the Company* (2,22,10,440) 10,61,841

(26,01,944)  4,79,58,996

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  (26,01,944)  4,79,58,996

*Applicable income tax rate 25.168% (31 March 2019: 34.944%)

Deferred tax expense/(income):

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes  (2,36,53,864)  24,03,497

Others  30,052  7,91,388

Deferred tax expense/(income)  (2,36,23,812)  31,94,885
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Deferred tax liability (net):

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting  6,01,38,944  8,37,92,808

(A)  6,01,38,944  8,37,92,808

Deferred tax asset

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  41,39,026  42,84,579

Lease liablities  1,15,501 -

(B)  42,54,527  42,84,579

Deferred tax liability (net) (A-B)  5,58,84,417  7,95,08,229

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net):

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Opening balance as of 1 April  7,95,08,229  7,63,13,344

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss  (2,36,23,812)  31,94,885

Closing balance as at 31 March  5,58,84,417  7,95,08,229

15. Other non-current liabilities

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Security deposits received  2,04,04,675  61,64,575

 2,04,04,675  61,64,575

16. Current financial liabilities

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

(a) Borrowings

Short-term loan from banks (unsecured)1  10,00,00,000  10,00,00,000

Loans repayable on demand (secured)

from banks2  15,50,94,268  28,56,33,236

from others3  8,93,46,553  21,51,93,377

Bills Discounted (secured)4  1,23,04,145  -

Buyer line of credit (secured)2  5,35,15,508  5,41,29,120

 41,02,60,474  65,49,55,733
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 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Notes:
1. Short-term loan from bank is repayable in June 2020 and is guaranteed by Directors namely Sh. Ashok Bhatia

and Sanjay Bhatia.
2. Working Capital limits are secured by pari-passu first charge on Current Assets of the company both present and

future and in addition by second charge on moveable fixed assets and Equitable Mortgage of immoveable
Murthal property of the company The above working capital limits are guaranteed by Directors namely S/Sh.
Ashok Bhatia, and Sanjay Bhatia except in PNB and Standard Chartered Bank where it is also guranteed by Sh.
Vijay Kumar Bhatia.

3. The above loan is against bill discounting of suppliers gauranteed by Directors namely S/Sh. Ashok Kumar Bhatia,
and Sanjay Bhatia.

4. The Bills Discounted is secured agianst subservient charge on current assets and personal guarantee of directors
namely S/Sh Ashok Kumar Bhatia and Sanjay Bhatia

(b) Trade payables
Micro, small and medium enterprises  62,59,242  67,27,740
Others  31,21,95,033  15,68,20,945

 31,84,54,275  16,35,48,685

Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006.
There are no micro, small and medium enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for
more than 45 days during the year and also as at March 31, 2020. This information as required to be disclosed
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined  to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

(c) Other financial liabilities

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Current maturities of long-term debt  7,03,05,294  18,84,68,851
Employees payable  1,45,58,309  78,26,249
Interest accrued but not due  40,88,698  47,93,601
Rent Equalisation Reserve  -  48,000
Other expenses payable  81,94,892  2,01,55,443
Creditors for capital expenditure  13,15,450  18,67,320
Unclaimed dividend  7,19,566  6,27,983

 9,91,82,209  22,37,87,447

17. Other current liabilities

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Taxes and other statutory dues payable  35,90,917  50,24,084
Security deposits received  11,66,778  1,86,250
Advances from customers  1,10,12,503  2,21,82,498
Other advances  25,00,000  8,20,776

 1,82,70,198  2,82,13,608
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18. Current provisions

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity  44,16,066  23,84,475
Leave encashment  19,13,785  -

 63,29,851  23,84,475

19. Current tax assets/(liability)

 As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Current tax assets/(liability)  1,29,21,695  25,90,356

1,29,21,695  25,90,356

20. Revenue from operations

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

a. Sale of goods
Manufacturing
Metal containers and components  2,34,44,91,611  2,58,41,11,434
Printed/lacquered sheets  40,59,741  55,12,552

Trading sales  44,46,30,601  57,03,19,689
b. Sale of scrap 18,36,33,935  20,36,34,016

 2,97,68,15,888 3,36,35,77,691

21. Other income

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Export incentives 3,08,38,897  3,19,87,461
Foreign exchange gain  42,04,734 49,99,392
Interest income 1,36,18,606  1,24,44,567
Excess liabilities or provisions written back  2,12,887  30,73,231
Profit on sale of fixed assets  15,757  11,64,303
Miscellaneous income  23,46,945  9,20,825

 5,12,37,826  5,45,89,779

* Excess liabilities or provisions written back includes NIL this year (Previous Year: INR 24,05,761) written back on account
of balances written off through provision and disclosed separately. Refer Note No. 27.1
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22. Cost of materials and components consumed

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Inventories at the beginning of the year  32,90,12,763  38,83,21,803
Add: Purchases  1,76,64,62,697  1,96,05,38,266
Less: Inventories at the end of the year  (25,74,02,028)  (32,90,12,763)

 1,83,80,73,432  2,01,98,47,306

Details of raw material consumed
Tin Plate  1,23,20,47,319  1,37,45,38,135
Printing Material  10,56,29,243  11,38,99,632
Packing Material  7,15,49,029  8,03,65,813
Other materials  42,88,47,841  45,10,43,723

 1,83,80,73,432  2,01,98,47,303

23. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods  8,55,47,086  9,37,32,190
Work-in-progress  7,45,49,672  10,55,36,224
Traded goods  94,99,517  1,88,20,307

 16,95,96,275  21,80,88,721
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods  5,81,07,003  8,55,47,086
Work-in-progress  6,31,54,263  7,45,49,672
Traded goods  9,39,175  94,99,517

 12,22,00,441  16,95,96,275

 4,73,95,834  4,84,92,446

24. Employee benefits expense
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Salaries, wages and bonus  24,05,36,670  23,81,02,651
Contribution to provident and other funds  1,14,49,279  1,13,69,495
Staff welfare expenses  64,44,768  49,40,203

 25,84,30,717  25,44,12,349

25. Finance costs
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Bank charges and commission expenses  1,15,84,145  1,12,60,861
Unwinding of discount on financial liablities at amortized costs  10,51,854  -
Interest expense  8,32,99,496  9,69,64,668

 9,59,35,495  10,82,25,529

26. Depreciation and amortization expense
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR
Depreciation on tangible assets  8,15,77,148  7,61,94,741
Depreciation on right-of-use assets  40,73,676  -
Amortisation of intangible assets  53,969  1,44,242

 8,57,04,793  7,63,38,983
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27. Other expenses

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Consumption of stores and spares  1,72,17,283  2,21,03,630
Power and fuel  7,28,74,522  7,90,90,916
Repair and maintainence expense  72,82,736  50,30,208
Director's sitting Fees  4,52,500  3,55,000
Insurance  46,39,734  68,46,143
Payment to auditors  7,14,776  5,62,945
Legal and professional expenses  1,24,57,255  1,28,55,955
Rates and taxes  16,36,557  11,76,617
Rent 12,89,132  56,93,334
Travelling and conveyance expenses  1,24,23,789  1,72,68,489
Membership and subscription charges  7,06,513  9,96,259
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses  25,97,201  27,98,140
Donation  1,14,500  62,820
Postage, telephone and internet expenses  25,52,867  31,28,227
Books and periodicals  27,794  49,335
Printing and stationery  14,28,094  15,92,738
Software charges  50,305  13,641
Business promotion expenses  8,58,361  19,97,449
Rebate and damages  16,19,576  25,54,421
Sales tax written off  41,379  28,541
Provision for doubtful debts  41,84,318  -
Fines and penalties  28,583  45,985
Balances written off (amount written off from provisions
Rs. NIL, 31.03.2019: Rs. 24,05,761)  -  40,49,603
Freight and forwarding charges  5,55,08,633  6,59,17,301
Job Work charges  -  7,24,665
Miscellaneous expenses  74,01,903  79,89,509

 20,81,08,311  24,29,31,871

27.1 Balances written off

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Bad Debts writtern off  -  24,05,761
Other Balances written off  -  16,43,842

-  40,49,603

27.2 Payment to Auditors

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

As Auditor:
Audit Fee 2,75,000  2,75,000

        For Tax Audit 1,02,500  1,00,000
        For Other Services  2,73,000  1,25,500
        Reimbursement of Expenses  64,276  62,445

 7,14,776  5,62,945

28. Earnings per share

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent  7,51,13,648  7,92,98,241
Weighted average number of equity shares 1,03,99,683  1,03,99,683
Basic and diluted earnings per share  7.22  7.63
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29. Post employment benefit plans: Gratuity and Leave
The Company has a funded defined benefit gratuity and leave encashment plan.
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed
five years of service is entitled to specific benefit.
The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

Gratuity Leave encashment
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR INR INR
Defined benefit obligation
Balance as at beginning of the year  4,00,62,701  3,78,78,660  1,86,96,568  1,87,45,199
Current service cost  32,07,838  27,25,566  19,67,192  16,25,298
Interest cost  28,04,389  29,35,596  13,08,760  14,52,753
Past Service Cost  -  -  -  -
Benefits paid  (25,49,153)  (27,54,654)  (7,33,202)  (12,40,700)
Remeasurement (gains)/losses in 11,15,961  (7,22,467)  2,91,470  (18,85,982)
other comprehensive income  
Balance as at end of the year  4,46,41,736  4,00,62,701  2,15,30,788  1,86,96,568

Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

Gratuity Leave encashment
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR INR INR

Fair value of plan assets
Balance as at beginning of the year  3,76,78,226  3,52,81,752 1,89,42,131  1,88,20,025
Expected return on plan assets  26,37,476  27,34,336  13,08,074  14,58,552
Contributions by the employer  23,84,475  25,96,908  1,00,000  1,00,000
Benefits paid  (25,49,153)  (27,54,654)  (7,33,202)  (12,40,700)
Remeasurement gains/(losses) in
other comprehensive income  74,646  (1,80,116)  -  (1,95,746)

Balance as at end of the year  4,02,25,670  3,76,78,226  1,96,17,003  1,89,42,131

 19,13,785  (2,45,563)

The above mentioned plan assets are entirely represented by funds invested with LIC.

Total expense recognised in profit or loss

Gratuity Leave encashment
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR INR INR
Current service cost  32,07,838  27,25,566  19,67,192  16,25,298
Interest cost  28,04,389  29,35,596  13,08,760  14,52,753
Expected return on plan assets  (26,37,476)  (27,34,336)  (13,08,074)  (14,58,552)

 33,74,751  29,26,826  19,67,878  16,19,499

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR

Remeasurements on Liability  (11,15,961)  (7,22,467)
Remeasurements on plan assets 74,646  1,80,116

Net remeasurements recognised in OCI  (10,41,315)  (5,42,351)
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Due to its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to the following significant risks:

Changes in return on plan assets - A decrease in return on plan assets will increase plan liability.

Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plans liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries
of the plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period

Gratuity Leave encashment
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

INR INR INR INR

Discount rates 7.00% p.a. 7.75% p.a. 7.00% p.a. 7.75% p.a.
Expected rates of return on any plan assets 7.00% p.a. 7.75% p.a. 7.00% p.a. 7.75% p.a.
Expected rates of salary increase 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 6.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Employee turnover

Upto 30 years 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
From 31 to 44 years 3.00% p.a. 3.00% p.a. 3.00% p.a. 3.00% p.a.
Above 44 years 2.00% p.a. 2.00% p.a. 2.00% p.a. 2.00% p.a.

Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2006-08 IALM 2012-14 IALM 2006-08
Ultimate Ultimate

Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation

Gratuity Leave encashment

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR INR INR

a) Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end
of the period

Impact due to increase of  1.00 %  4,12,42,724  3,75,78,450  1,99,13,133  1,75,30,889

Impact due to decrease of  1.00 %  4,85,71,290  4,29,00,254  2,34,19,584  2,00,39,694

b) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of
the period

Impact due to increase of  1.00 %  4,83,87,548  4,27,47,464  2,34,19,584  2,00,49,516

Impact due to decrease of  1.00 %  4,13,57,423  3,76,83,198  1,98,84,784  1,75,02,231

c)  Impact of the change in withdrawl rate

Present value of obligation at the end of
the period

Impact due to increase of  1.00 %  4,51,53,533  4,05,55,886  2,16,62,620  1,88,53,757

Impact due to decrease of  1.00 %  4,40,61,233  3,95,09,588 2,13,82,152  1,85,20,227
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30. Segment reporting

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the company’s risks and rates
of return are affected predominantly by differences in the nature of services rendered. Secondary information is
reported geographically. The operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of the services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
services and serves different markets.

A. PRIMARY SEGMENT BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ended 31.3.2020 For the year ended 31.3.2019

Particulars Manufacturing Trading Total Manufacturing Trading Total

I. SEGMENT REVENUE

a) Segment Revenue  25,321.85  4,446.31  29,768.16  27,932.58  5,703.19  33,635.77

b )  Unallocated income  -  -  512.38  -  -  545.90

c )  Operating Revenue  30,280.54  27,932.58  5,703.19  34,181.67

II. SEGMENT RESULTS

a) Segment Results  1,049.60  132.60  1,182.20  1,667.74  137.66  1,805.40

b )  Unallocated Income  512.38  545.90

c) Profit before interest & Income
Tax (a) + (b)  1,694.58  2,351.30

d )  Interest  959.36  1,082.26

e )  Net Profit before Income
Tax (c) - (d)  735.22  1,269.04

f )  Exceptional Income  -  -

g )  Net Profit after exceptional
income but before Income
Tax (e) + (f)  735.22  1,269.04

h )  Tax Expenses  (26.02)  479.59

i )  Net Profit after Income Tax  761.24  789.45
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31. Related Party Disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationship

a. Key Management Personnel Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatia
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia
Mr. P.P. Singh

b. Relative of Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Paras Bhatia
Mr. Saket Bhatia
Mr. Parikshit Bhatia

c. Entities controlled or significantly influenced by Innopac Containers Pvt. Ltd.
Key Management Personnel or their relatives Innopac  ABPackaging Pvt. Ltd.

Innopac  Crown Packaging Pvt. Ltd.
M/s Parmanand Vijay Kumar

Related Party Disclosure

a) Transactions during the year

Nature of transactions 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Rent expenses
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhatia  7,92,000  7,92,000

Rent income
Innopac Containers Pvt. Ltd.  1,01,952  1,01,952
Innopac AB Packaging Pvt. Ltd.  33,984  33,984

Sale of goods
Innopac containers Pvt. Ltd.  52,19,169  73,42,719

Purchases of goods
Innopac AB Packaging Pvt. Ltd.  -  11,800
Innopac containers Pvt. Ltd.  13,767  -

Director's remuneration
Mr. Sanjay Bhatia  1,03,72,863  89,92,670
Mr. Ashok Bhatia  59,69,822  52,28,233
Mr. Vijay Bhatia  4,63,680  27,82,080
Mr. PP Singh  14,07,780  13,18,980

Salaries
Mr. Paras Bhatia  72,27,660  62,85,092
Mr. Saket Bhatia  72,21,960  62,79,120
Mr. Parikshit Bhatia  26,14,680  7,58,160

b) Balances outstanding as at the year end

Nature of transactions 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Trade receivables
Innopac containers Pvt. Ltd.  36,82,217  24,25,661

Salary payable
Mr. PP Singh  84,961  80,485

*Note: The remuneration to key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave
benefits, as they are determined on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.
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32. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the  financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to
be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy
for the same is explained in Note 2.2.15

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event if it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and leave encashment) are not discounted to its present value and are
determined based on best estimate required to settle  the obligation at the Balance sheet date. These are
reviewed at each Balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best esitmates. Contingent liabilities are
not recognised in financial statements. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with
the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 29.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. Carrying value and approximate fair values of financial instruments are
same.
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33. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks : market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The primary
market risk to the Company is foreign exchange risk. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers.

Market risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales and services outside India, and purchases and
services from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The exchange rate between the rupee and foreign
currencies may fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations are
adversely affected as the rupee appreciates / depreciates against these currencies.

The foreign currency risks from financial instruments as of March 31, 2020 were as follows :

  Particulars Currency Amount in foreign Amount in
currency INR

  Trade receivables USD  6,75,450  5,11,11,336

  Trade payable USD  9,14,406  6,91,93,102
EUR 33,949  28,10,282

  Borrowings USD  24,22,466  18,33,08,009

  Capital commitments JPY  19,28,020  12,74,421

The foreign currency risks from financial instruments as of March 31, 2019 were as follows :
  Particulars Currency Amount in foreign Amount in

currency INR

  Trade receivables USD  8,86,784  6,13,25,833

  Trade payable USD  9,06,625  6,27,02,194
AUD  2,19,093  1,07,57,466
EUR  35,925  27,92,615
CHF  12,465  8,66,002

 Borrowings USD  32,55,106  22,51,23,162

  Capital commitments USD  44,800  30,98,368

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. Trade receivables
are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers  located primarily in India. Credit risk
has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of
business.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks.

Liquidity risk

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated
from operations. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.
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34. Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Company has entered into operating leases on immovable properties and plant and machinery, with lease
terms upto six years.

The group has paid INR 46,66,608 (31 March 2019: INR 56,93,334) during the year towards minimum lease
payment.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

  Within one year   15,43,608  15,54,212

  After one year but not more than five years  -  -

  More than five years  -  -

 15,43,608  15,54,212

b. Contingent liabilities

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

(i) Local area development tax  21,34,410  21,34,410

(ii) Land acquisition notice  1,89,84,156  -

 2,11,18,566  21,34,410

(i) Rs 21,34,410 for the year 2008-09 to 2017-18  may be payable to Haryana Sales Tax Department towards
L.A.D.T.   The company has filed an appeal before the Hon’ble High Court Chandigarh for the relief and the
Hon’ble High Court has granted stay against L.A.D.T. and declared L.A.D.T. unconstitutional.  The department
has filed Appeal before the Hon’ble Supreme Court for granting stay and the same is pending, however no
demand has been raised by the Haryana Sales Tax Department.

(ii) The Company purchased 7.55 bigha land in Katha Baddi in 2006-07 for setting up a new project but due
to change in Tax Policy of the Central Government, company could not set up the unit with in specified/
extended time allowed u/s 118 of Himachal Pradesh Tenancy and Land Reform Act 1972.The purchase
price of the same is Rs 189.84 lac. District Collector (DC), Solan had issued show cause notice to acquire the
land as per the provision of the Act. The reply of the notice was filed and the company through its legal
representative has argued the case. The District Collector has given the judgment which is not in favor of the
company. The company had filed appeal against the order of the District Collector with Divisional
Commissioner (Appeal) and the adjudication was given in favour of the Company. The state government
has filed revision petition against the said order before Financial Commissioner (Appeals) Shimla and the
case is pending.

c. Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided
for in the books of account as at March 31, 2020 is Rs. 40,63,256 (31 March 2019: Rs. 82,35,010).
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35. Fair value measurements

a. Break-up of Financial instruments carried at Fair value through OCI

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Financial assets

Investments  11,49,98,050  11,49,98,050

11,49,98,050  11,49,98,050

b. Break-up of Financial instruments carried at amortised costs

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
INR INR

Financial assets
Loans  6,63,50,000  6,78,50,000
Trade receivables  1,04,50,33,286  1,01,35,42,858
Cash and cash equivalents  3,22,36,653  4,32,39,302
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  1,58,37,670  2,10,48,478
Other financial assets  5,64,62,936  4,84,92,253

 1,21,59,20,545  1,19,41,72,891

Financial liabilities
Borrowings  60,16,15,781  83,23,09,758
Trade payables  31,84,54,275  16,35,48,685
Lease liabilities  51,33,528  -
Other financial liabilities  9,91,82,209  22,37,87,447

 1,02,43,85,793  1,21,96,45,890

Carrying value and approximate fair values of financial instruments are same.

36. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19)
The COVID-19 pandemic is an evolving human tragedy declared a global pandemic by the World Health
Organisation with adverse impact on economy and business. Supply Chain disruptions in India as a result of the
outbreak started with restrictions on movement of goods, closure of borders etc., in several states followed by a
nationwide lockdown from the 25th of March 2020 announced by the Indian government, to stem the spread of
COVID-19. Due to this, the operations in some of the Company’s manufacturing and depot locations got
temporarily disrupted. The Company manufactures Tin cans, Printed/Lacquered sheets, components and trading
of tin plates and most of its goods are packaging for essential commodities.
In light of these circumstances, the Company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19
on the carrying amounts of financials assets, inventory, receivables, property plant and equipment, Intangibles
etc., as well as liabilities accrued. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the
economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has used internal and external information such
as our current contract terms, financial strength of partners, investment profile, future volume estimates from the
business etc.
Having reviewed the underlying data and based on current estimates the Company expects the carrying
amount of these assets will be recovered and there is no significant impact on liabilities accrued. The impact of
COVID-19 on the Company’s standalone financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these standalone financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.

For Mukesh Raj & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Hindustan Tin Works Limited
FRN No. : 016693N

Sanjay Bhatia Ashok Kumar Bhatia
Mukesh Goel Managing Director Whole Time Director
Partner DIN: 00080533 DIN: 00081730
Membership No.: 094837

Rajat Pathak M. K. Mittal
Place : Delhi VP (Finance) & AVP (Accounts) & CFO
Date: 26th June, 2020 Company Secretary


